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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 32" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Hilltone Software and
Gases Limited, will be held on Monday, 29" September 2025 at 03.00 P.M through Video Conferencing
(“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended on 31%t March, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors’ and
Auditors’ thereon;
2. To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Sapnaben Hitalbhai Shah (DIN: 08615859), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, has offered herself for reappointment.
3. To appoint M/s Ashvin K. Yagnik & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory auditor of the
company for five years
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory
modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s. Ashvin K. Yagnik & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN:
100710W) be and are hereby reappointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the term of five
years, from the conclusion of this 32" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 37" Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2030, to examine and audit the accounts of the Company at such
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of
the Company.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
fix the annual remuneration plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses payable to them during
their tenure as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, as determined by the Audit Committee in
consultation with the said Auditors.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to take such steps
and do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be considered necessary, proper, and expedient
to give effect to this Resolution.”
SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. To Appoint Ms. Dipika Modi (DIN: 11269866) as Non-Executive Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution(s)
as a Special Resolution:
“‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 160, 161, read with Schedule
IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as well as other Rules made thereunder and
pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), as amended (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, Ms. Dipika Modi (DIN: 11269866), who has
submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act read
with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and is eligible for
appointment under the provisions of the Act, read with the Rules made thereunder and the applicable
provisions of Listing Regulations, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing her candidature for the office of an Independent Director, be
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director (under Non-Executive category) of the Company, to
hold office for a term of five consecutive years i.e., from 29" September, 2025 till 28" September, 2030
and not liable to retire by rotation.
‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director, CFO and the Company Secretary be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all documents or writings
as may be necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to the above resolutions, including completing
necessary filings with the relevant regulatory authorities regarding such appointment.”
5. To Appoint M/s Hussain Bootwala and Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial
Auditor for five years from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
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thereof, for the time being in force], and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company,
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of M/s Hussain Bootwala &
Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No. S2022GJ854400) as the Secretarial Auditor of
the Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years, commencing on April 1, 2025, until March 31,
2030, to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company and to furnish the Secretarial Audit Report.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
fix the annual remuneration plus applicable taxes and out-ofpocket expenses payable to them during
their tenure as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as determined by the Audit Committee in
consultation with the said Secretarial Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to take such steps
and do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be considered necessary, proper, and expedient
to give effect to this Resolution.”

6. TO INCREASE THE AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AND CONSEQUENT ALTERATION OF
CLAUSE V OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION (MOA) OF THE COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution(s)
as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and as may be applicable, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time and as may
be applicable and in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and
subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions, conditions and sanctions, as may be necessary
from any other authority, consent of the Members’ of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company for increase in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from
Rs.12,00,00,000/-(Rupees Twelve Crore Only) divided into 1,20,00,000 (One Crore Twenty Lakh) equity
shares of Rs. 10/-(Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs.15,00,00,000/-(Rupees Fifteen Crore Only) divided into
1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10/-(Rupees Ten Only)each ranking pari passu
in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Company and consequently, the existing Clause V of
the Memorandum of Association of the Company, be and is hereby replaced with the following new
Clause V:

V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 15,00,00,000/-[Rupees Fifteen Crore Only]
divided into 1,50,00,000 [One Crore Fifty Lakhs] Equity Shares of Rs.10/-[Rupees Ten Only] each
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of
Directors of the Company (the ‘Board’), be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things including but not limited to filing of necessary forms/ documents with the appropriate
authorities and to execute all such deeds, documents, instruments and writings as it may in its sole and
absolute discretion deem necessary or incidental or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or
doubt that may arise in regard thereto.”

7. TO MAKE ALTERATION IN THE MAIN OBJECT OF THE COMPANY AND CONSEQUENT
AMENDMENT TO CLAUSE Il OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution(s)
as a Special Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being
in force), and the rules framed there under and subject to the approval of the concerned Registrar of
Companies Ministry of Corporate Affairs, consent of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution and
is hereby accorded to alter the object of the company under clause Il of the Memorandum of Association
of Company pursuant to which the object of the company is as follows:

- To carry on the business as manufacturers, producers, processors, makers, inventors, converters,
importers, exporters, traders, buyers, sellers, retailers, wholesalers, suppliers, indenters, packers,
movers, preservers, stockists, agents, sub-agents, merchants, distributors, consignors, jobbers, brokers,
concessionaires in all type of industrial gases and medical gases like Oxygen, Hydrogen, Nitrogen,
Carbonic Acid, Acetylene, Argon, Freon and any other gases or Kindred substances or any compounds
thereof, to deal with, manufacture, and other residual products obtained in the manufacture of such
gases and not limited to aforesaid mentioned and to do all related activities manufacturing industrial
gases and medical gases in India or abroad.

To carry on business as advisors and/or consultants on matters and problems relating to the industries,
administration, management, organisation, accountancy, costing, financial, marketing, computer

2|Page



‘ Hilltone Software NOTICE
v & Gases Limited

software and hardware import, export, commercial of economic activities, labour statistical organisation,
methods, quality control data processing, technical know-how, operations, manufacture, production,
storage, distribution sale and purchase of goods, properties of and in relation to any business trade,
commerce, industry, mines, agriculture housing or real estate and upon the means methods and
procedure for the establishment, construction development, real estate plants or machineries and all
systems, methods, techniques, processes principles in relation to the foregoing and to carry on business
of rendering services on anyone or more or aforesaid matters.

- To carry on the business of designing, developing, exporting, importing, consultancy and training in all
kinds of software, hardware, systems, programs, products, applications and services, for all purposes
including but not limited to Business Process Outsource units, Knowledge Process Outsource units , Call
centers, Data centers, Medical Transcription Centers and the like and to set up Research and
Development Centers and train, educate in one or more of the above areas and to carry on business, to
develop, design, structure, establish, maintain market, buy, import, export, sell, provide, license and
implement and to set up the business of handling customer support services by establishing Business
Process Outsource units, Knowledge Process Outsource units, Call centers, Data centers, Medical
Transcription Centers and the like whether pertaining to own customers or client’s customers from within
India or outside, for requests received over telephone, fax, email, web, kiosk, post, video conferencing or
any other mode including through which any customer can communicate by accessing information in
possession of the company or provided by the client in India or anywhere in world . To carry on in India
or abroad the business of developing, designing, maintaining, selling software, packages and
applications, client server applications, enterprise resource planning, network management, outsourcing
related services and other services in the field of information technology. To develop, provide, undertake,
design, import, export, distribute and deal in Systems and application software for microprocessor based
information systems, off shore software development projects, internet service provider, and solutions in
all areas of application including those in Emerging niche segments like Internet and Intranet website
applications solutions software enterprise, resource planning, e-commerce, value added products,
process control and automation, artificial intelligence and other business applications either for its own
use for sale in India or for export outside India and to design and develop such systems and application
software for and on behalf of manufacturers owners and users of computer, telecom, digital, electronic
equipments in India or elsewhere in the world

- To carry on business of manufacturing, fabricating, processing, installing, erection, assembling,
improving, reconditioning, buying, selling, hiring, cleaning, servicing, exporting, importing, distributing
and otherwise deal in all types of heat exchangers, heat transfer coils, heating and ventilating
equipments, air conditioning, refrigeration equipments, process heat transfer equipments, energy saving
devices and other related mechanical electrical and control equipments in India and outside India.

- To acquire concessions or licenses granted by or to enter into contracts with, the Government of India,
any State Government, Municipal, Local Authority or other Statutory bodies, Companies or any other
person for the development, erection, installation, establishment, construction, operation and
maintenance of Solar Power Plants, and in this regard to promote, develop, own, acquire, set up, erect,
build, install, commission, construct, establish, maintain, improve, manage, operate alter, control, take on
hire / lease, carry out and run all necessary Plants, equipments, sub-stations, workshops, generators,
transmission facilities, machinery, electrical equipment, accumulators, repair shops, wires, cables,
lamps, fittings and apparatus in the capacity of principals, contractors, developers or otherwise and to
deal, buy, sell and hire/ase all apparatus and things required for or used in connection with generation,
distribution, supply, accumulation of Solar Energy and other renewable energy.

- To carry on in India or elsewhere the business to provide, commercialize, control, develop, establish,
handle, operate, hold, pack, organise, promote, service, supervise, represent and to act as agent,
concessionaires, consultants, booking agents or deal in all types reusable materials through recycling
operations, waste management, remediation services for decontaminating buildings, mine sites, soil, or
groundwater, and dispose of garbage and other waste materials.

-To carry on the business of Digital Marketing Services, Atrtificial intelligence, machine learning, and
smart things which includes System Integrators for Providing Partner Services, Search Engine
Optimization, Search Engine Marketing, Social Media Marketing, Content Marketing, Email Marketing,
Programmatic Media Buying for Digital Campaigns, Video Campaigns, Artificial Intelligence (Al) &
Advanced Machine Learning, Intelligent Apps, Intelligent Things Virtual & Augmented Reality,
Conversational Systems.

-To carry on all the business of hotels, resorts restaurants, cafes, holiday camps, taverns, beer-houses,
refreshment rooms, night clubs, cabarets and swimming pools and Turkish baths and lodging or
apartment house keepers, licensed victuallers, wine, beer and spirit merchants, brewers, distillers,
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bakers and confectioners, importers and manufactures of aerated mineral and artificial water and other
drinks.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take necessary steps, to obtain
confirmation of concerned Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Section 13(9) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the aforesaid alteration of Clause Il of the Memorandum of
Association and to agree to such modifications, terms & conditions in the new proposed sub clause as
may be directed by the Registrar of Companies and to modify the same accordingly.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of the
Company be and is hereby authorised, on behalf of the Company, to do all acts, deeds, matters and
things as deem necessary, proper or desirable and to sign and execute all necessary documents,
applications and returns for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution along with filing of
necessary E-form as return of appointment with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat.”

8. TO ADOPT A NEW SET OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution(s)
as a Special Resolution:

"Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Section 5, 14, 15 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and subject to such other requisite
approvals, if any, in this regard from appropriate authorities and terms(s), condition(s), amendment(s),
modification(s), as may be required or suggested by any such appropriate authorities, and agreed to by
the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board” which term shall include any
Committee), the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to adopt new set of
Article of Association as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 in place of existing Articles of
Association of the Company.

Resolved Further That the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.
Resolved Further That any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to file
necessary forms with Registrar of Companies and submit the certified copy of this resolution to the
concerned authorities as and when required."

9. TO ISSUE AND ALLOT 30,82,000 EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY, EACH HAVING FACE
VALUE OF Rs. 10/-, AT A PRICE OF Rs. 44/- PER EQUITY SHARE AND FOR AN AGGREGATE
CONSIDERATION OF Rs. 13,56,08,000/- (RUPEES THIRTEEN CRORES FIFTY-SIX LAKHS EIGHT
THOUSAND ONLY), ON A PREFERENTIAL BASIS, AS PER BELOW MENTIONED TABLE

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution(s)
as a Special Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to (i) the provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 62 (1)(c) and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Companies Act”) read with
the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended and the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended and other relevant rules made there under
{including any statutory modification(s) thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force},
enabling provisions in Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, provisions of the
uniform listing agreement entered into with BSE Limited where the shares of the Company are listed
(“Stock Exchange”), and in accordance with the guidelines, rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), as amended including the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”), the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended,
the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (“Takeover Regulations”)
as amended, the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as amended and in accordance with other
applicable rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, clarifications and guidelines issued thereon, from
time to time, by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), Ministry of Corporate Affairs, SEBI and / or any other
competent authorities, and subject to the approvals, consents, permissions and / or sanctions, as may
be required from the Government of India, SEBI, subject to other applicable rules, regulations, and
guidelines of BSE Limited (“BSE”) (referred to as “Stock Exchange”), and any other relevant statutory,
regulatory, governmental authorities or departments, institutions or bodies and subject to such terms,
conditions, alterations, corrections, changes, variations and / or modifications, if any, as may be
prescribed by any one or more or all of them in granting such approvals, consents, permissions and / or
sanctions, the consent of members be and is hereby accorded to Board of Directors to create, issue,
offer and allot in one or more tranches, on preferential basis to persons belonging to Non-Promoter
Category, 30,82,000 (Thirty Lacs Eighty Two Thousand Only) Equity Shares of face value of ¥10/- each
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at an issue price of Rs. 44/- as calculated in valuation report given by registered Valuer, determined in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter V of SEBI ICDR Regulations, to the below mentioned persons
(“Proposed Allottees”), on such further terms and conditions as mentioned hereunder:

NOTICE

Sr. No | Name of Proposed Allottee Category Status Prefrential
1 | Parminder Singh Sethi Non-Promoter | Individual 1,93,000
2 | Raveesh Dewan Non-Promoter | Individual 1,93,000
3 | Maynard George McAlpin Non-Promoter | Individual 4,40,000
4 | Gurpreet Singh Pasricha Non-Promoter | Individual 4,85,000
5 | E Wizdom Private Limited Non-Promoter | Body Corporate 4,85,000
6 | Sanket Ashok Shah Non-Promoter | Individual 8,500
7 | Deepali Sanket Shah Non-Promoter | Individual 16,500
8 | Dharmender Singh Kalsi Non-Promoter | Individual 16,000
9 | Manjula Punetha Non-Promoter | Individual 9,000

10 | Harinder Kaur Non-Promoter | Individual 67,500
11 | Amarjeet Makhija Non-Promoter | Individual 87,000
12 | Sarabjeet Singh Non-Promoter | Individual 56,000
13 | Atul Kumar Non-Promoter | Individual 1,14,000
14 | Tapan Dewan Non-Promoter | Individual 80,000
15 | Padmanabha S Bhatta Non-Promoter | Individual 2,45,000
16 | Harvinder Pal Singh Ratan Non-Promoter | Individual 1,14,000
17 | Patel Jyotsnaben Dipakkumar Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
18 | Patel Dipakkumar Thakersinhbhai | Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
19 | Samir N Mehta Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
20 | Patel Dilipkumar Ganeshbhai Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
21 | Dhwanil Saumil Bhavnagari Non-Promoter | Individual 2,00,000
22 | Vrushank Pranav Shah Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
23 | Preksha Jimesh Gandhi Non-Promoter | Individual 50,000
24 | Shailesh Sitaram Shah Non-Promoter | Individual 25,000
25 | Dipikaben Gunvantbhai Shah Non-Promoter | Individual 7,500
26 | Gunvantbhai Natvarlal Shah Non-Promoter | Individual 7,500
27 | Veena Gupta Non-Promoter | Individual 59,000
28 | Hasmukhbhai dhirubhai Parmar Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
29 | Anant Sarvottam Prasad Saxena | Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
30 | Prithi Pal Singh Non-Promoter | Individual 20,000
31 | Ravikumar Dwarkaprasad Jain Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
32 | Sachin Rajkumar Khorana Non-Promoter | Individual 10,000
33 | Pallavi Soni Non-Promoter | Individual 13,500

Total 30,82,000

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company hereby notes and takes on record that in accordance
with the provisions of Regulation 161 of the ICDR Regulations, the “Relevant Date” for the purpose of
calculating the floor price for the issue of equity shares of the Company to be Friday, August 29, 2025,
and the floor price for the preferential issue on the aforesaid Relevant Date pursuant to regulation
164(1) of the ICDR Regulations is ¥ 44/- (Rupees Forty Four only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares to be issued to the Proposed Equity Allottee(s) in the
preferential issue shall be listed and traded on the Stock Exchange where the existing Equity Shares
are listed, subject to receipt of necessary regulatory permissions and approvals.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any committee thereof, be and is hereby authorized to
make an offer to the Proposed Equity Allottee (s) through private placement offer letter in Form PAS-4
as prescribed under the Companies Act after passing of this shareholders’ resolution with a stipulation
that the allotment would be made only upon receipt of in-principle approval from the Stock Exchange,
receipt of the consideration as aforesaid and within the timelines prescribed under the applicable laws.

5|Page



‘ Hilltone Software NOTICE
v & Gases Limited

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid issue of Equity Shares shall be subject to the following
terms and conditions:

e The proposed allottees shall be required to bring in 100% of the consideration, for the Equity Shares
to be allotted, on or prior to the date of allotment thereof, from their respective bank account;

e The equity shares so offered, issued and allotted shall not exceed the number of equity shares as
approved hereinabove.

e The pre-preferential shareholding of the proposed Allottees, if any and the equity shares to be
allotted to the Proposed Allottees shall be under lock in for such period as may be prescribed under
Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations;

e The Equity Shares so allotted to the Proposed Allottees under this resolution shall not be sold,
transferred, hypothecated or encumbered in any manner during the period of lock-in provided under
SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018 except to the extent and in the manner permitted thereunder;

¢ Allotment shall only be made in dematerialized form;

¢ The Equity Shares shall be allotted within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of passing this
resolution, provided where the allotment of the Equity Shares is pending on account of pendency of
any approval of such allotment by any regulatory authority, the allotment shall be completed within a
period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of receipt of such approval;

e The Equity Shares proposed to be issued shall rank pari-passu with the existing Equity Shares of the
Company in all respects and that the Equity Shares so allotted shall be entitled to the dividend
declared, if any, including other corporate benéefits, if any, for which the book closure or the record date
falls subsequent to the allotment of Equity Shares.

¢ The issue and allotment of Equity Shares shall be subject to the requirements of all applicable laws
and shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of
the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares proposed to be so allotted shall rank pari-passu in all
respects including as to dividend, with the existing fully paid-up Equity Shares of ¥10/- (Rupees Ten
Only) each of the Company, subject to the relevant provisions contained in the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution the Board of Directors
of the Company and Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company be and are hereby
authorized severally on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may
in its absolute discretion consider necessary, desirable or expedient, including without limitation to
make application to Stock Exchange for obtaining of in-principle approval, listing of shares, filing of
requisite documents with the Registrar of Companies, National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL),
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and/ or such other authorities as may be necessary
for the purpose, to resolve and settle any questions and difficulties that may arise in the proposed
issue, offer and allotment of the said Equity Shares, utilization of issue proceeds, signing of all deeds
and documents as may be required without being required to seek any further consent or approval of
the shareholders.

“‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in connection with any of the foregoing resolutions, the Board of
Directors/Committee(s) of the Board and Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company be
and are hereby severally authorized to execute and deliver any and all other documents, papers and to
do or cause to be done any and all acts or things as may be necessary, appropriate or advisable in
order to carry out the purposes and intent of the foregoing resolutions for the preferential issue; and
any such documents so executed and delivered or acts and things done or caused to be done shall be
conclusive evidence of the authority of the Company in so doing and any document so executed and
delivered or acts and things done or caused to be done prior to the date hereof are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved as the acts and deeds of the Company, as the case may be.”

10. TO INCREASE THE BORROWING POWERS UNDER SECTION 180(1)(C) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 UP TO INR 200 CRORES

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following
resolution(s) as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier Special Resolutions and pursuant to the provisions of
Section 180(1)(c) and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with
applicable rules framed thereunder (including any statutory amendment, modification or re-enactment
thereof, for the time in force), applicable regulations framed by Securities Exchange Board of India
read with rules or regulations framed thereunder, enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles
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of Association of the Company and such other applicable laws and regulations and subject to the
permissions, approvals, consents and sanctions as may be necessary to be obtained from appropriate
authorities, to the extent applicable and wherever necessary, consent of the Members be and is hereby
accorded to empower Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which term shall be
deemed to include, unless the context otherwise requires, any Committee, which the Board may have
constituted or hereinafter constitute or any officer(s) authorised by the Board or Committee to exercise
the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) to borrow any sum of money, from time to time,
whether in Indian or foreign currency, in any manner including but not limited to, fund based or non-
fund based assistance, term loan, guarantees, working capital facilities, overdraft facilities, lines of
credit, inter corporate deposits, credit facilities, external commercial borrowings or any other form of
financial assistance, from any person including but not limited to any company, individual, body
corporate, banks, related parties, financial institutions or any other person, whether Indian or foreign, in
any form including but not limited to by way of draw-down or issue of securities, whether in India or
outside India, upon such terms & conditions as regards to interest, repayment, tenor, security or
otherwise, as the Board may determine and think fit, such that the monies to be borrowed, together
with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained from the
Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up
share capital, free reserves and securities premium of the Company but shall not exceed at any time a
sum equivalent to INR 200 Crores (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things, arrange, give such directions as may be deemed necessary or
expedient, or settle the terms and conditions of such instrument, securities, loan, debt instrument,
agreement as the case may be, on which all moneys as are borrowed, or to be borrowed, from time to
time, as to interest, repayment, security, or otherwise howsoever as it may think fit, and to execute all
such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to this resolution and for
matters connected herewith or incidental hereto, including intimating the concerned authorities or
regulatory bodies and delegating all or any of the powers conferred herein to any committee of
directors of officers of the Company.”

11. TO CREATE CHARGES, MORTGAGES, HYPOTHECATION ON THE IMMOVABLE AND
MOVABLE PROPERTIES OF THE COMPANY UNDER SECTION 180(1)(a) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following
resolution(s) as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier Special Resolutions and pursuant to the provisions of
Section 180(1)(a) and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with
applicable rules framed thereunder (including any statutory amendment, modification or re-enactment
thereof, for the time in force), applicable regulations framed by Securities Exchange Board of India,
read with rules or regulations framed thereunder, enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company and such other applicable laws and regulations and subject to the
permissions, approvals, consents and sanctions as may be necessary to be obtained from appropriate
authorities, to the extent applicable and wherever, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded
to empower Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which term shall be deemed to
include, unless the context otherwise requires, any Committee which the Board may have constituted
or hereinafter constitute or any officer(s) authorised by the Board or Committee to exercise the powers
conferred on the Board by this Resolution) to mortgage, hypothecate, create charge, in addition to
mortgage, hypothecate, create charge already created by the Company, in such manner as may be
determined, on all or any of the moveable or immoveable properties or assets of the Company, both
present and future and or whole or any part of undertaking(s) of the Company together with the power
to take over the management of the business and concern of the Company in certain events of defaults
to secure the borrowings of the Company, in foreign currency and / or rupee currency and securities
(comprising fully / partly convertible Debentures and / or Non-Convertible Debentures, on all or any of
the above, with or without detachable or non-detachable warrants and / or secured premium notes and
/ or floating rate notes / bonds (including Masala Bonds) or other debt instruments) issued / to be
issued by the Company from time to time, in favor of the Lender(s), Agent(s) and Trustee(s), together
with interest at the respective agreed rates, additional interest, compounded interest, in case of default
accumulated interest, liquidated damages, commitment charges, premium on prepayment,
remuneration of the Agents / Trustee, premium (if any) on redemption, all other costs, charges and
expenses as a result of devaluation / revaluation / fluctuation in the rates of exchange and all other
monies payable by the Company in terms of the Loan Agreement(s) / Trust Deeds(s) / other
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Agreement(s) / any other documents, entered into / to be entered into between the Company and the
Lender(s) / Agent(s) and Trustee(s), in respect of the said loans / borrowings / debentures / bonds or
other securities and containing such specific terms, conditions and covenants in respect of
enforcement of security as may be stipulated in that behalf from time to time but shall not exceed at
any time a sum equivalent to INR 200 Crores (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things, arrange, give such directions as may be deemed necessary or
expedient, or settle the terms and conditions of such instrument, securities, loan, debt instrument,
agreement as the case may be, on which all moneys as are borrowed, or to be borrowed, from time to
time, as to interest, repayment, security, or otherwise howsoever as it may think fit, and to execute all
such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to this resolution and for
matters connected herewith or incidental hereto, including intimating the concerned authorities or
regulatory bodies and delegating all or any of the powers conferred herein to any committee of
directors of officers of the Company.”

12. MAKING INVESTMENT(S) AND/OR PROVIDING LOAN(S) AND GIVE GUARANTEE (S) IN
EXCESS OF THE LIMITS PRESCRIBED UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following
resolution(s) as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier special resolutions pursuant to provisions of Section 186
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) (“the Act”) read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, applicable regulations framed by Securities Exchange
Board of India, if any, enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company and such other applicable laws and regulations including the Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 (and regulations framed thereunder), and subject to other statutory approvals,
consents, sanctions and permissions, as may be necessary to be obtained from appropriate
authorities, to the extent applicable and wherever necessary, consent of the Members be and is hereby
accorded to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’
which term shall be deemed to include, unless the context otherwise requires, any Committee,
including the Finance and the Investment Committee, which the Board may have constituted or
hereinafter constitute or any officer(s) authorised by the Board or Committee to exercise the powers
conferred on the Board by this Resolution) to:

a) give loans, inter corporate deposits from time to time on such terms and conditions as it may deem
expedient to any person or other bodies corporate;

b) give on behalf of any person, body corporate, any guarantee in connection with a loan made by any
other person to, or to any other person by any body corporate; and

c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities of any other body corporate
over and above the limits specified under Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 but shall not
exceed at any time a sum equivalent to INR 200 Crores (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only).
13. TO INCREASE THE LIMIT OF INVESTMENT BY NON-RESIDENT INDIANS (NRIS) OR
OVERSEAS CITIZEN OF INDIA (OCI) ON FULLY DILUTED BASIS IN THE PAID UP SHARES
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following
resolution(s) as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999,
as amended (“FEMA”), Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, as
amended up to date (“FEMA Non- Debt Instrument Rules”), the Consolidated Foreign Direct
Investment Policy Circular of 2020 dated October 15, 2020 issued by the Department for Promotion of
Industry and Internal Trade, Government of India, Master Directions — Foreign Investment issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (as amended from time to time), the Companies Act, 2013 as amended, as
the case may be and all other applicable acts, rules, regulations, provisions and guidelines (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and subject to all
applicable approvals, permissions and sanctions of the Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Finance,
Government of India, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India and other concerned
authorities and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by any of the said concerned
authorities while granting such approvals, permissions or sanctions which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company, the respective limits of investment by non-resident Indians (NRI)
and overseas citizens of India (OCI) in the Equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the
FEMA Non- Debt Instrument Rules, is increased from 10% to 24% of the paid-up equity share capital
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of the Company provided that the shareholding of each NRI or OCI in the Company shall not exceed
5% of the paid-up equity share capital on a fully diluted basis or such other limit as may be stipulated
by RBI in each case, from time to time
Resolved Further That the Board and such other persons as may be authorised by the Board, be and
are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, things and deeds on behalf of the Company and
make such filings / application with the regulatory authorities, including RBI, to effectively implement
this resolution.
Resolved Further That any of the Directors or the Chief Financial Officer or the Company Secretary is
authorized to certify the true copy of the aforesaid resolutions.”
14. TO INCREASE THE LIMIT OF INVESTMENT BY FOREIGN PORTFOLIO INVESTORS (FPIS)
ON FULLY DILUTED BASIS IN THE PAID-UP SHARES CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following
resolution(s) as a Special Resolution:
“Resolved That pursuant to the applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as
amended (‘FEMA”), Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, as
amended up to date (“FEMA Non- Debt Instrument Rules”), the Consolidated Foreign Direct
Investment Policy Circular of 2020 dated October 15, 2020 issued by the Department for Promotion of
Industry and Internal Trade, Government of India, Master Directions — Foreign Investment issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (as amended from time to time), the Companies Act, 2013 as amended, as
the case may be and all other applicable acts, rules, regulations, provisions and guidelines (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and subject to all
applicable approvals, permissions and sanctions of the Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Finance,
Government of India, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India and other concerned
authorities and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by any of the said concerned
authorities while granting such approvals, permissions or sanctions which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company, the limit of investment by foreign portfolio investors in the equity
shares of face value of ¥ 10 each of the Company, including, without limitation, by subscription in the
initial public offering in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended, or direct purchase or acquisition from
the open market or otherwise, is increased from 24% to 49% of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company, provided however that the shareholding of each foreign portfolio investor in the Company
shall not exceed 10% or such other limit as may be stipulated by RBI in each case, from time to time.”
Resolved Further That the Board and such other persons as may be authorised by the Board, be and
are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, things and deeds on behalf of the Company and
make such filings / application with the regulatory authorities, including RBI, to effectively implement
this resolution.”
Resolved Further That any of the Directors or the Chief Financial Officer or the Company Secretary is
authorized to certify the true copy of the aforesaid resolutions.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Hilltone Software and Gases Limited

HINISHA PATEL

Date : 015t September, 2025 COMPANY SECRETARY
Place : Mehsana ACS No: 59842
NOTES:

1. Pursuant to General Circulars No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, No.20/2020
dated May 5, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, No. 2/2022
dated May 5, 2022 and No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), the Company is convening the 32" Annual General Meeting
("AGM") through Video Conferencing ('VC')/Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM'), without the physical presence
of the Members at a common venue. Further, Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), vide its
Circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022 and January 5, 2023 October 6, 2023, October
7, 2023 and October 3, 2024 ('SEBI Circulars') and other applicable circulars issued in this regard, have
provided relaxations from compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations'). In compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the Listing Regulations and MCA Circulars, the 32" AGM of the Company is being held
through VC/OAVM on Monday, 29" September, 2025 at 3:00 p.m. The deemed venue for the AGM will be the
Registered Office of the Company.

2. Since the 324 AGM of the company is being held through VC or OAVM pursuant to the above cited MCA
circulars, the requirement of physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. accordingly, in terms
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

of the MCA circulars and listing regulations, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be
available for this AGM and hence the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of the 324 AGM are not
annexed to this notice.
Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend meeting are requested to send
the Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote
on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting.
The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.
In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of Names will be
entitled to vote.
SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment vide
Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018, requests for effecting transfer of
securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be processed from April 1,
2019 unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories. Therefore, Shareholders
are requested to take action to dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company promptly. The Register of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Book of the Company will be closed from 21st September, 2025
to 28t September 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately for any change in their
address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their dematerialised
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change in their address or
bank mandates immediately to the Company or contact our Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. MCS Share
Transfer Agent Limited.
Members are requested to contact our Registrar and Transfer Agent for any queries related to shares and
other inquiry at the following address:
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
Unit: Hilltone Software and Gases Limited, 201, Shatdal Complex, 2ndFloor, Opp. Bata Show Room, Ashram
Road, Ahmedabad — 380 009
Phone: (079) 26582878, Fax No : (079) 26581296 E-mail: mcssta@gmail.com
Please quote Folio no. / DP ID & CL ID for any communication for your shareholding.
Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Statement are open for inspection by the
Members in electronic mode up to the date of the 32" Annual General Meeting. Members can inspect the
same by sending an email to the Company through their registered email id at secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com
Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, the details of
Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment in the Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, 29t
September 2025 is attached as per Annexure |
Any member desiring any clarification / explanation in respect of the information given in this annual report is
requested to submit query to the Company at least seven days in advance before the meeting so as to enable
the management to keep information ready.
Pursuant to Regulations 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the soft copies of Annual Report 2024-25 are
being sent through electronic mode only to the members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company / Depository Participant(s), unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the report.
The Companies Act, 2013 has also recognized serving of documents to any Member through electronic mode.
Your email addresses made available by the Depository for your respective Depository Participant accounts as
part of the beneficiary position downloaded from the Depositories from time to time will be deemed to be your
registered email address for serving notices / documents including those covered under Sections 101 and 136
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the underlying rules relating
to transmission of documents in electronic mode.
Members may also note that the Notice of the 32" AGM and the Annual Report 2024-25 will be available on
the Company’s website www.hilltonegases.com. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be
available at the Company’s registered office for inspection during normal business hours on working days.
Members who require communication in physical form in addition to e-communication, or have any other
queries, may write to us at secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com.
To support the ‘Green Initiative’ of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Members who have not registered their
e-mail addresses are requested to register the same with MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited/Depository
Participant(s) as under
For Physical shareholders:-
Please send duly signed Request Letter mentioning therein Name of shareholder, Folio No., Email ID & Mobile
No. along with self-attested copy of PAN Card through email at mcsstaahmd@gmail.com
For Demat shareholders:-
Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email ID, Mobile No. & PAN No. with your
DP as per the process advised by your DP.
The Company has designated Email ID: “secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com” for redressal of
Shareholders’/Investors complaints/grievances. In case you have any queries, complaints/grievances, then
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18.

19.

kindly write to the above-mentioned email address. If any of the members are holding shares in the same
name or in the same order of names, under different folios, then members are requested to notify the same to
the RTA of the Company for consolidation of their shareholding into a single folio.
If any of the members are holding shares in the same name or in the same order of names, under different
folios, then members are requested to notify the same to the RTA of the Company for consolidation of their
shareholding into a single folio.
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated registration of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) and Bank Account Details for all the securities holders. Members holding shares in physical mode are
therefore, requested to register their PAN & Bank Account details by sending duly signed request letter to
Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Link In time India Pvt. Ltd. (“RTA”) on ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
and also to the Company on secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com along with the self-attested copy of PAN &
cancelled cheque bearing the name of the Member (in case of joint holding, the cancelled cheque shall bear
the name of first named shareholder) or self-attested copy of latest bank statement duly attested by Bank
Manager & cancelled cheque (if name of the shareholder is not reflected in the cheque). Members holding
shares in demat form are requested to submit the aforementioned documents, as applicable, to their
Depository Participants for registration/ updation of PAN & Bank Account details.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Hilltone Software and Gases Limited

HINISHA PATEL

Date : 015t September 2025 COMPANY SECRETARY
Place : Mehsana ACS No: 59842
Registered Office:

B/4, K B Complex, Dairy Road,

Mehsana Gujarat

ANNEXURE |

Details of Directors seeking appointment/reappointment/continuation of directorship in Annual
General Meeting to be held on 29" September, 2025.

Information on directors recommended for appointment/re-appointment as required under Regulation 36
(3) of the SEBI (Listing and Obligation Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, Companies Act
2013 and Secretarial Standard at ensuing Annual General Meeting are as follows:

Name SAPNABEN
HITALBHAI SHAH DIPIKA MODI
Director Identification Number (DIN) 08615859 11269866
DOB 24/05/1973 05/07/1999
e BJ Bachelors,
Qualification Bachelors GCompany Secretary
Management Compliance,
Expertise in specific area i Secretarial, Legal,
Leadership Fi
inance
Date of First appointment on the Board of 14/11/2019 )

the Company

Shareholding in the Company (Only In
case the Director to be appointed is a Non- 7200 NIL
Executive Director)

List of Directorship held in other

. Nil NIL
companies
Names of Listed Entities in which the HILLTONE
person holds membership of Committees SOFTWARE AND NIL
of the Board GASES LIMITED
Wife of Mr.
. o . HITALKUMAR
Relatlonghlp with other Directors/Key SHAH, Whole Time NIL
Managerial Personnel .
Director of the
Company
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HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED
CIN: L72200GJ1993PLC020620
Registered Office: B/4, K B Complex, Dairy Road, Mehsana Gujarat- 384002, India
Phone: (02762) 255282 Fax No: (02762) 240055 Email: secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com
Website https://hilltonegases.com/
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING:
How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of | Login Method

shareholders

Individual 1. For OTP based login you can click on
Shareholders https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter
holding your 8-digit DP 1D,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter

securities  in the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After

demat mode successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you

with NSDL. can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-
Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

3.If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.
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NSDL Mobile App is available on

" App Store ' Google Play

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab
and then user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in,
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
holding securities in demat | helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 -
mode with NSDL 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL

holding securities in demat | helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
mode with CDSL contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities
in physical mode.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.
4, Your User ID details are given below :
Manner of holding shares i.e. [ Your UserID is:
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or

Physical
a) For Members who hold shares | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
in demat account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******,

b) For Members who hold shares | 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D

in demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary D is q2%*x*#*rwesss
then your user ID ig 12**x***xxxssex

c) For Members holding shares | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
in Physical Form. with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and
cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the finitial
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?’(If you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.  After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

5 ﬁ;‘tgr you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.



https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

[98)

W

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to M/s. D.A.
Rupawala & Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.:108902W ;Membership
No.: 37674), rupawala_ca@yahoo.co.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of
Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed
under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to

keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990and1800 22 44 30 or send a request to (MR. KETAN KUMAR PATEL) at
evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out
in this notice:

. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of

the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (tfrl4444@gmail.com).

. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (tfrl4444@gmail.com). If you
are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode.

. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile
number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-
Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting”
menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join
Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by
following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

2. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

3. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches.

4. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

SECTION B - COMMENCEMENT OF E-VOTING PERIOD AND OTHER E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS:

i. The E-Voting period commences on 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, September 25, 2025 until 5:00 p.m. on
Sunday, September 28", 2025. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 19t", 2025 may cast their
vote electronically. The e-Voting module shall be disabled for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is
cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

ii. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of
the Company.

iii. M/s. D.A. Rupawala & Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.:108902W;
Membership No.: 37674) (Address: 705, Mahakant, Opp. V.S Hospital, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad — 380 006,
Gujarat, India) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-Voting process.

iv. The Scrutinizer shall on conclusion of the e-voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two
(2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favor
or against, if any and submit forth with to the Chairman of the Company.

v. The Results shall be declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ immediately
after declaration of results by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and communicated to the
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

vii. For Members holding shares in physical form, the password and default number can be used only for e-
Voting on the resolutions given in the notice.

viii. Institutional Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to
https://www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as Corporates, link their account which they wish to vote
on and then cast their vote. They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp
and sign of the entity to evoting@nsdl.co.in. They should also upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution /
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favor of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the vote.

ix. You can also update your mobile number and E-mail ID in the user profile details of the folio which may be
used for sending communication(s) regarding NSDL e-Voting system in future. The same may be used in case
the Member forgets the password and the same needs to be reset.

x. The Members are requested to pay attention to the matter that once he / she has exercised his / her right
then he / she shall not be allowed to change his / her vote subsequently in any case.

xi. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(“FAQs”) and e-Voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT [Pursuant to Sections 102 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013]
ITEM No. 4

Ms. Dipika Modi, holding Director Identification No. 11269866, is to be appointed as Director of the
Company, under the category of Independent Director, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150,
152, 160, 161, read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as well as other
Rules made thereunder and pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), as amended (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Further, Ms. Dipika Modi has confirmed that she is not disqualified to act as a Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act and she is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI
order or any other such authority and she is in compliance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Given her expertise, knowledge and experience, the Board is of the opinion that it would be in the
interest of the Company to avail her services as an Independent Director of the Company and she has
given her consent to act as a Director of the Company.

A brief profile of Ms. Dipika Modi is mentioned hereunder:

Ms. Dipika Modi is a Company Secretary and is an Associate Member of Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI)

She is a qualified and experienced Company Secretary with a strong background in legal, compliance,
and corporate governance, with hands-on expertise across listed entities (NSE & BSE), private and
public companies, as well as LLPs. Currently serving as a Company Secretary & Compliance Officer,
she is committed to promoting transparency, integrity, and regulatory excellence within corporate
frameworks. She possess a proactive approach to navigating complex legal and regulatory
environments, with a focus on risk mitigation, strategic compliance, and stakeholder governance.
Registered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). She is Certified by NISM for Investors
Examination.

Accordingly, the details of Ms. Dipika Modi pursuant to the provisions Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are provided in the ‘Annexure’
to the Notice.

Ms. Dipika Modi is not related to any Director or KMP of the Company.

None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at ltem No. 4 for approval of
the Members as a Special Resolution

ITEM No. 5

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in
force) (‘the Act’), every listed company and certain other prescribed categories of companies are
required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Practicing Company Secretary, to their Board’s
report, prepared under Section 134(3) of the Act.

Furthermore, pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing
Regulations’), every listed entity and its material Subsidiaries in India are required to conduct Secretarial
Audit and annex the Secretarial Audit Report to its annual report.

Additionally, a listed entity must appoint a Secretarial Audit firm for a maximum of two terms of five
consecutive years, with shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on August 14", 2025, has approved the appointment of M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates,
Company Secretaries, (Firm Registration No. S2022GJ854400) as the Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years, commencing from April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030
subject to approval of the Members at the Annual General Meeting.

Furthermore, in terms of the amended regulations, M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates has provided a
confirmation that they have subjected themselves to the peer review process of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and hold a valid peer review certificate. M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates has
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confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as Secretarial Auditors and that they have
no conflict of interest.

While recommending M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates for appointment, the Board and the Audit
Committee evaluated various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a diverse and complex
business environment, its existing experience in the Company’s business segments, its industry
standing, the clientele it serves, and its technical expertise. M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates was
found to be well-equipped to manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with the Secretarial
Audit of the Company. M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates is a peer reviewed and a well-established
firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, registered with the Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
New Delhi. The firm is led by experienced proprietor, who is distinguished professional in the field of
corporate governance and compliance.

M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates has provided its consent to act as the Secretarial Auditors of the
Company and has confirmed that the proposed appointment, if made, will be in compliance with the
provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. Accordingly, approval of the shareholders is
sought for appointment of M/s Hussain Bootwala & Associates as the Secretarial Auditors of the
Company.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for
approval by the Members. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.

ITEM No. 6

The present Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore)
comprising of 1,20,00,000 (One Crore Twenty Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and Paid-up
Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 10,93,08,000/- (Rupees Ten Crore Ninety Three Lakhs Eight
Thousand only) comprising of 1,09,30,800 (One Crore Nine Lakh Thirty Thousand Eight Hundred) Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Board, has also accorded its approval for increasing the Authorised Share
Capital from Rs. 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore) to Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifteen Crore)
divided into 1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty lacs) equity shares of Rs.10/- each ranking pari passu with the
existing Equity Shares in all respects as per the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, subject to shareholders approval. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 & 61 of the
Companies Act, 2013, approval of the Members is required for increasing the Authorised Share Capital
of the Company and alteration in the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out at Item No. 6 seeking approval of the Members for
increasing the Authorised Share Capital of the Company and consequential amendment to the
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, are in
any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolutions.

ITEM No. 7

Your Board has to consider from time-to-time proposals for diversification into areas which would be
profitable for the Company as part of diversification Plans. For this purpose, the Objects Clause of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company (‘MOA’), which is presently restricted in scope, is required
to be comprehensive so as to cover a wide range of activities to enable your Company to consider
embarking upon new projects and activities.

The alteration in the Objects Clause of the MOA as set out in the Resolution is to facilitate diversification.
This will enable the Company to enlarge its area of operations and carry on its business economically
and efficiently and the proposed activities can be, under the existing circumstances, conveniently and
advantageously combined with the present activities of the Company.

The “Main Object” clause of the MOA of the Company is being amended by addition of more clauses
and activities to existing Gas and Software and its allied Business. The Board at its meeting held on 23™
August, 2025 has approved alteration of the MOA of the Company and the Board now seek Members'
approval for the same.

The draft copy of the Memorandum of Association of the Company with the proposed alteration is
available for inspection at the registered office of the Company on any working day during Business
Hours till the date of AGM.

The Amendment shall be effective upon the registration of the resolution with the Registrar of the
Companies.

The proposed change of object clause requires the approval of shareholders through Special Resolution
pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval of the
Members.
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Person(s) of the Company including their relatives are, in any
way, concerned or deemed to be interested in the proposed resolution.

ITEM No. 8

The Articles of Association (“AocA”) of the Company as presently in force was never been replaced since
its incorporation in the year 1993. The existing Articles are based on the Companies Act, 1956 and
several regulations in the existing AoA contains references to specific section of the Companies Act,
1956 and some regulations are no longer in conformity with the Act.

The Companies Act, 2013 is now largely in force. On 12th September, 2013 the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“MCA”) had notified 98 sections for implementation and subsequently, on 26th March, 2014 MCA
notified most of the remaining sections.

In order to make the Articles of Association of the Company in tandem and to comply with the relevant
sections/ provisions under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereof it is proposed to replace the
existing Articles of Association of the Company by a new set of Articles.

Additionally, certain articles that was included in the existing articles of association of the Company prior
to the listing of the Company and which are no longer relevant in the context of a listed company are to
be deleted. Accordingly, in lieu of amendments to various articles in the existing Articles of Association, it
is considered prudent and desirable to adopt a new set of Articles of Association of the Company, in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing Articles of Association of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the consent of the members of the Company
by way of a Special Resolution is required for adoption of a new set of Articles of Association of the
Company. Accordingly, this matter has been placed before the Shareholders for approval.

The Board of Directors of the Company, therefore, recommends passing of the resolution as set out in
the Notice as Item No 8.

A copy of the proposed new set of the Articles of Association of the Company would be available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company situated on all working days except Saturdays and
Public Holidays between 9.30 A.M and 2.00 P.M upto the date of declaration of the results of voting by
Postal Ballot by the Company and would be uploaded on the Company's Website for perusal by the
shareholders.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Person(s) of the Company including their relatives are, in any
way, concerned or deemed to be interested in the proposed resolution.

ITEM No. 9

The Company is engaged primarily Manufacturer & supplier of various Gases we are one of the basic
manufactures at best Quality medical & Industrial Gases. Our Products rang consists of Gases, Mixture
Gases, Liquid Gases. Our plant at Santej using latest technology and excellent process to obtain the
best Quality industrial and medical gases and Our products are used by Pharmaceutical Industry,
Hospital Sector, Chemical Industry, Petroleum Industry, Engineering Industries, Steel Cutting Industry
etc.

The company requires additional funds to carry out its business activity, for long-term working capital
requirements and general corporate purpose to augment the growth and improve the financial
performance of the Company and it was thought fit to bring more funds to the company by way of issue
of Equity Shares on Preferential basis.

The Special Resolution contained in Item No. 9, to issue and allot Equity Shares up to 30,82,000 (Thirty
Lacs Eighty-Two Thousand) of face value of 10/- each at an issue price of Rs. 44/- (Rupees Forty Four)
as calculated in valuation report given by registered Valuer, to persons belonging to Non-Promoter
Category.

The preferential issue shall be made in terms of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018 and
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The said proposal has been considered and approved by
the Board in its meeting held on August 23, 2025, subject to the approval of Members of the Company
and other necessary approval(s) and shall be on the terms and conditions, as mentioned below:

The approval of the members is accordingly being sought by means of a ‘Special Resolution’ under
Sections 42, and 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made thereunder, and
Regulation 160 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Shares to be allotted to the Investors shall rank pari-passu with all other equity shares of the
Company in respect of all rights including dividend.

Pursuant to provisions of Rule 13(2)(a) and (b) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules 2014
read with Regulation 160 (b) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2018,
Company is required to obtain consent of the shareholders by passing a Special Resolution.
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Pursuant to Provisions of Regulation 163 of The SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2018 and Rule 13(2)(d) of
The Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules 2014, disclosures are made hereunder for the
information of shareholders.

NOTICE

THE RELEVANT DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION -163 OF THE SEBI (ICDR)
REGULATIONS, 2018 AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME ARE AS UNDER:

a) The Object(s) of The Preferential Issue:

The Company’s business is growing and the funds are required by the Company for meeting its capital
requirements and permissible business investments as allowed under applicable laws. The object of
preferential issue of equity shares is to raise funds for long-term working capital requirements for
expansion along with diversification and general corporate purposes which will augment the growth and
improve the Financial Performance of the company.

b) Maximum Number of Shares to be issued and price

The Board intends to offer, issue and allot Equity Shares up to 30,82,000 (Thirty Lacs Eighty-Two
Thousand Only) of face value of *10/- each to persons belonging to Non-Promoter Group Category in
terms of the provisions of Chapter V of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013.

c) Intent of Promoters / Directors / KMP to subscribe to the offer:

None of the existing Promoters, Directors or Key Management Personnel of the Company intend to
subscribe proposed issue of Equity Shares.

d) Time Frame within which allotment shall be completed

As required under the ICDR Regulations, the Company shall complete the allotment of equity shares as
aforesaid on or before the expiry of 15 days from the date of passing of the special resolution by the
shareholders granting consent for preferential issue or in the event allotment of equity shares would
require any approval(s) from any regulatory authority or the Central Government, within 15 days from the
date of such approval(s), as the case may be.

e) Shareholding pattern of the Company before and after the preferential issue:*

Sr. Category Pre Issue Post Issue”

No No of shares held |% of Holding] No of shares held % of

Holding

A. |Promoters’ Holding| Physical Demat Physical Demat

1. |Indian:
Exiting Promoters
Individuals - 14,03,500 12.84 14,03,500 10.02
Bodies Corporate - - - -
Sub Total - 14,03,500 12.84 14,03,500 10.02

2. |Foreign Promoters - - -
Sub Total (A) - 14,03,500 12.84 14,03,500 10.02

B. [Non Promoter’s
Holding

1. |Institutional Investors - 21,200 0.19 - 5,06,200 3.61
Financial Institution

2. |Non — Institutions - - - - -
Private Corporate - - - - - -
Bodies
Directors and - - - - -
Relatives
Indian Public 13,30,400 | 47,69,864 55.80 13,30,400] 56,96,864 50.15
Others (as specify - -
below)
Clearing Member - - - -
NRI - 12,54,392 11.48 - 24,84,392 17.73
Bodies Corporate 56,400 3,14,600 3.39 56,400 3,14,600 2.65
Others - 17,80,444 16.29 - 22,20,444 15.84
Sub Total (B) 13,86,800 | 81,40,500 87.16 13,86,800] 1,12,22,500 89.98
Grand Total 13,86,800 | 95,44,000 100 13,86,800] 1,26,26,000 100
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NOTICE

* The post issue percentage of shareholding has been calculated assuming preferential allotment of
equity shares of the Company as stated in the table above.

f) Identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners of the Equity Shares
proposed to be allotted and/or who ultimately control the proposed allottees, the
percentage of post preferential issue capital that may be held by them and change in
control, if any, in the issuer consequent to the preferential issue:

Sr |Name of the ProposedUltimate BeneficialPre-Issue EquityNo. ochost issue Equity

No. |Allottees Owners (Ifholding shares toholding)

applicable) No of% be No of%
Shares allotted [Shares
1. E Wizdom Private Limited  |Shivan Berry 1200 0.01 4,85,0004,86,2003.47
g) The percentage of post preferential issue capital held by the proposed allottees:
Categor .
Sr. | Details of the y of Pre-issue Holding in E Nu.mbel:' o HPc:z?-lss.ue# Consideration
No | proposed Allottee ST S e olding In
Allottee prop.osed 2
Current* No. of y be issued No. of y Cash
* shares . shares ° | Amount in Rs.
Parminder
1 | Singh Sethi 600,000 | 5.49 193000 793,000 | 5.66 8,492,000
Raveesh
2 | Dewan 600,000 | 5.49 193000 793,000 | 5.66 8,492,000
Maynard
George
3 | McAlpin 198,857 | 1.82 440000 638,857 | 4.56 19,360,000
Gurpreet
Singh
4 | Pasricha 51,901 | 0.47 485000 536,901 | 3.83 21,340,000
E Wizdom
Private
5 | Limited 1,200 | 0.01 485000 486,200 | 3.47 21,340,000
Sanket Ashok
6 | Shah 8,500 | 0.08 8500 17,000 | 0.12 374,000
Deepali
7 | Sanket Shah 16,500 | 0.15 16500 33,000 | 0.24 726,000
Dharmender
8 | Singh Kalsi 19,933 | 0.18 16000 35,933 | 0.26 704,000
Manijula Non-
9 | Punetha 1,000 | 0.01 9000 10,000 | 0.07 396,000
Promote
10 | Harinder Kaur Y 67,100 | 0.61 67500 134,600 | 0.96 2,970,000
Amarjeet
11 | Makhija 13,000 | 0.12 87000 100,000 | 0.71 3,828,000
Sarabjeet
12 | Singh 1,000 | 0.01 56000 57,000 | 0.41 2,464,000
13 | Atul Kumar - - 114000 114,000 | 0.81 5,016,000
14 | Tapan Dewan 2,964 | 0.03 80000 82,964 | 0.59 3,520,000
Padmanabha
15 | S Bhatta 500 0 245000 245,500 | 1.75 10,780,000
Harvinder Pal
16 | Singh Ratan - - 114000 114,000 | 0.81 5,016,000
Patel
Jyotsnaben
17 | Dipakkumar - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000
Patel
Dipakkumar
Thakersinhbh
18 | ai 2765 | 0.03 10000 12765 | 0.09 440,000
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Samir N
19 | Mehta - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000

Patel
Dilipkumar
20 | Ganeshbhai - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000

Dhwanil
Saumil
21 | Bhavnagari 2,000 | 0.02 200000 202,000 | 1.44 8,800,000

Vrushank
22 | Pranav Shah - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000

Preksha
Jimesh
23 | Gandhi - - 50000 50,000 | 0.36 2,200,000

Shailesh
24 | Sitaram Shah 15,475 | 0.14 25000 40,475 | 0.29 1,100,000

Dipikaben
Gunvantbhai
25 | Shah 5,100 | 0.05 7500 12,600 | 0.09 330,000

Gunvantbhai
Natvarlal
26 | Shah 4,350 | 0.04 7500 11,850 | 0.08 330,000

27 | Veena Gupta 100 0 59000 59,100 | 0.42 2,596,000

Hasmukhbhai
dhirubhai
28 | Parmar - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000

Anant
Sarvottam
Prasad

29 | Saxena - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000

Prithi Pal
30 | Singh 2,000 | 0.02 20000 22,000 | 0.16 880,000

Ravikumar
Dwarkaprasa
31 | d Jain - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000

Sachin
Rajkumar
32 | Khorana - - 10000 10,000 | 0.07 440,000

33 | Pallavi Soni - - 13500 13,500 | 0.10 594,000

Total 16,14,245 | 14.76 3,082,000 | 4,695,790 | 33.51 13,56,08,000

#The post issue percentage of shareholding has been calculated assuming preferential allotment of
equity shares of the Company as stated in the table above.

h) Change in control, if any, in the Company that would occur consequent to the preferential
offer:

The proposed allotment on preferential basis, will not mandatorily result in change in management or
control of the Company as per the provisions of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011, as amended.

i) Undertaking for re computation of price and lock-in of the specified securities in terms of
the provision of these regulations:

Since the Equity Shares of the Company has been listed on the recognized stock exchange for a period
of more than 90 days prior to the relevant date, the Company is not required to re-compute the price of
Equity Shares and therefore the Company is not required to submit the undertaking specified under
Regulations 163(1)(g) and (h) of the ICDR Regulations.

The Company undertakes to re-compute the price of the equity shares, if at all required, in terms of the
provisions of these regulations where it is required to do so.

The Company further undertakes that if the amount payable on account of the re-computation of price if
not paid within the time stipulated in these regulations, the specified equity shares shall continue to be
lock-in till the time such amount is paid by the allottee(s).
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j) Disclosure Regarding Willful Defaulter or Fraudulent Borrower:

None of the proposed allottees is debarred or prohibited to access the capital market. Further, none of
the proposed allottees is a willful defaulter or fraudulent borrower. In addition, neither the Company nor
any of its promoter or director is a willful defaulter. Hence no disclosure is required as specified in
Schedule — VI of SEBI(ICDR) Regulations.

k) The current and proposed status of the allottee(s) post the preferential issues namely,
promoter or non-promoter

The current status of the Proposed Allottees after the proposed allotment shall remain same and there
shall be no change in the status of the Proposed Allottee.

1) Practicing Company Secretary Certificate:

A Certificate from M/s. Hussain Bootwala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership
No.: ACS 49591; CP No: 23980), as required under Regulation 163 (2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
certifying that the issue of equity shares is in compliance with requirements contained in the SEBI(Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, will be made available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company on all working days between 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. from relevant date
till 29t September, 2025 i.e. last date of receipt of e-voting. The same has been post on the Company’s
website: www.hilltonesgases.com

m) Pricing of Preferential basis:

The price of equity shares as determined in accordance with Regulation 164(1) read with Regulation 161
of Chapter V of the ICDR Regulations is (frequently traded security) to be issued to Non-Promoter
Category on preferential basis is fixed at Rs. 44/- as calculated in valuation report given by Registered
Valuer in terms of Regulation 164(1) read with Regulation 161 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.
The Valuation Report in that regard has been obtained from M/s. CS Amrish Gandhi Company
Secretary, Registered Valuer, having experience of more than 10 years as prescribed under provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.

n) Basis on which the price has been arrived at:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and are being
frequently traded as per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Hence, the price has been determined as per
provisions of Regulation 164 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. The Valuation Report in that regard has
been obtained from M/s. CS AMRISH GANDHI (IBBI Registered Valuer), Registered Valuer

Pursuant to above, the minimum issue price determined in accordance with Regulations 164(1) read with
Regulation 161 of Chapter V of the ICDR Regulations is ¥ 13,56,08,000 (Thirteen Crores Fifty-Six Lakhs
Eight Thousand) (“Total Issue Size”). In view of the above, the Board of the Company has fixed the Issue
price of ¥ 44/- (Rupees Forty-Four Only) which is above the Minimum Price as determined in compliance
with the requirements of the ICDR Regulations.

o) Relevant Date

The relevant date as per the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations for the determination of the price per equity
shares pursuant to the preferential allotment is Friday, 29" August, 2025 (“Relevant Date”) (i.e. 30 days
prior to the last date specified by the Company for E-voting which is i.e., Monday, 29" September, 2025
to approve the proposed preferential issue.

p) Class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made:

The allotment is proposed to be made to the Non-Promoter Category of the Company their holding and
other details are mentioned at disclosure no. (g).

q) Terms of the Listing of Equity Shares, if any

The Equity Shares allotted in terms of this resolution shall rank Pari-passu with existing equity shares of
the Company in all respects.

r) No. of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis has already been made during the
year, in terms of number of securities as well as price:

During the Year, Company has not made any Preferential Issue of shares.

s) Principal terms of assets charged as securities
Not Applicable
t) Justification for allotment proposed to be made for Consideration other than Cash

together with the valuation report of the Registered valuer:

Not Applicable.

u) Lock in Period:

The securities allotted to Proposed Allottees pursuant to this preferential offer shall be locked in for such
period as may be specified under Regulation 167 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and/or any other
applicable provisions for the time being in force. The entire pre-preferential allotment shareholding of the
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proposed allottee(s), if any, shall be under locked-in for such period as may be prescribed under Chapter

V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

V) Holding of Shares in Demat Form:

The equity shares will be issued to the proposed allottees in Dematerialized form as well as the pre-

preferential holding of all the allottees is in Dematerialized form.

w) Payment:

In terms of the Regulation 169 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, full consideration shall be paid by the

allottees at the time of allotment of such specified securities.

X) Undertakings:

* Neither the Company, its directors or Promoters have been declared as willful defaulter or fraudulent
borrower as defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. None of the directors and / or Promoters is a
fugitive economic offender as defined under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. And

» The Company is eligible to make the Preferential Allotment to its Proposed Allottee under Chapter V
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

* As the Equity Shares have been listed for a period of more than ninety days as on the Relevant Date,
the provisions of Regulation 164(3) of SEBI ICDR Regulations governing re-computation of the price
of shares shall not be applicable.

» The Company shall re-compute the price of the Equity Shares to be allotted under the Preferential
Allotment in terms of the provisions of SEBI ICDR Regulations where it is required to do so.

» The Proposed Allottees have confirmed that he has not sold or transferred any equity shares of the
Company during the 90 trading days preceding the Relevant Date. The Proposed Allottee has further
confirmed that he is eligible under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations to undertake the Preferential Issue.

» The entire pre-preferential allotment shareholding of the Proposed Allottees, if any, shall be locked-in
from the Relevant Date up to a period of 90 trading days from the date of trading approval.

» |If the amount payable on account of the re- computation of price is not paid within the time stipulated
in the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares to be allotted under the Preferential Allotment shall
continue to be locked-in till the time such amount is paid by the allottees.

* None of the company or its promoters or whole-time directors are in violation of the provisions of
Regulation 24 of the SEBI Delisting Regulations, 2009.

+ All the Equity Shares held by the proposed allottees in the Company are in dematerialized form only.

» The Company is in compliance with the conditions for continuous listing of Equity Shares as specified
in the listing agreement with the Stock Exchange and the Listing Regulations, as amended and
circulars and notifications issued by the SEBI thereunder

+ The Company will make an application to the Stock Exchange at which the existing shares are listed,
for listing of the equity shares. Such equity shares, once allotted, shall rank pari-passu with the
existing equity shares of the Company in all respects, including dividend, if any and voting rights.

y) Approvals:

The Company will take necessary steps to obtain the required approvals from the Stock Exchange,

SEBI, or any other regulatory agency as may be applicable, for the proposed preferential issue of equity

shares.

The consent of the members is now being sought under Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013

read with rules framed there under, Chapter V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and provisions of

the listing agreement executed by the Company with the BSE Limited where the equity shares of the

Company are listed. The Board of Directors of the Company believes that the proposed preferential

issue is in the best interest of the Company and its members.

The Board recommends Resolution No. 9 of the Notice, in relation to Preferential Issue of Equity Shares

upto 30,82,000 (Thirty Lacs Eighty-Two Thousand Only) of face value of Rs. 10/- each to persons

belonging to Non-Promoter Category, for your approval as Special Resolution. The Directors
recommend the Resolution set out in the Notice for the approval of the Members.

None of the directors except or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or

interested in the Resolution.

The Board of Directors believes that the proposed Preferential Issue is in the best interest of the

Company and its Members and, therefore, recommends the resolution at ltem No. 9 of the

accompanying Notice for approval by the Members of the Company as a Special Resolution.

Documents referred to in the notice/ explanatory statement will be available for inspection by the

Members of the Company as per the applicable legal provisions.

ITEM No. 10 and 11

Considering the business plan and future business prospects, the Company may require additional funds

to support from various person such as banks, financial institutions, NBFCs or any other person
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including related parties. Keeping in view the above requirement, it is proposed to revise the borrowing
powers of the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which term shall be deemed to
include, unless the context otherwise requires, any Committee, which the Board may have constituted or
hereinafter constitute or any officer(s) authorized by the Board or Committee to exercise the powers
conferred on the Board by this Resolution) upto INR 200 Crores(Indian Rupees Two Hundred Crores
only) for smooth functioning of the Company.

It is further informed that the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) imposes
restrictions on the borrowing powers of the Board to the extent of aggregate amount of paid-up capital,
free reserves & security premium however, amount in excess of said limits can be borrowed after
obtaining prior approval of shareholders of the Company by way of special resolution. The borrowings of
the Company are in general required to be secured by suitable mortgage or charge on all or any of the
movable or immovable properties of the Company, in such form, manner and ranking as may be
determined by the Board from time to time, in consultation with the lender(s). It is therefore, necessary
for the shareholders to pass a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, as set out at ltem
No. 10 & 11 of the Notice, to enable the Board of Directors to borrow money upto INR 200 Crores (Indian
Rupees Two Hundred Crores) and inter alia, authorised the Board to secure its borrowing by mortgage /
charge on any of the movable and/or immovable properties and/or the whole or any part of the
undertaking(s) of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolutions except to the extent of their
shareholding in the Company, if any.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item No 10 and 11 for approval
of Members.

ITEM No. 12

The provisions of Section 186(2) of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, inter-alia, provides that no company is permitted to, directly or indirectly,

(a) give any loan to any person or other body corporate;

(b) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or
person; and

(c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate,
exceeding:

i. sixty percent of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account; or

ii. one hundred per cent of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more.

It is further informed to the Board of the Directors that keeping in view of current and future plans of the
Company and to fulfill long term strategic business objectives and as a measure greater financial
flexibility, it is proposed to re-enhance the limits of the Company as prescribed under Section 186 of the
Act up to an aggregate sum of INR 200 Crores (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Crores only)
notwithstanding that the aggregate of loans and investments so far made, the amounts for which
guarantee is given along with the investments, loans, inter-corporate deposits, guarantee proposed to be
made or given by the Board may exceed limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Act.

Also, as required under Section 186 of the Act read along with the Companies (Meeting of the Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, the proposed resolution shall also require the approval of the Members by way
of a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution except to the extent of their
shareholding in the Company, if any.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set forth in ltem No 12 for the approval of
Members.

ITEM No. 13

In terms of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended, the Foreign Exchange Management
(Nondebt Instruments) Rules, 2019, as amended (the “FEMA Regulations”), and the Consolidated Policy
Circular of 2017, as amended (together with the FEMA Regulations, the “FEMA Laws”), the Non
Resident Indians (“NRI”) and Overseas Citizens of India (“OCI”), together, can acquire and hold on
repatriation basis up to an aggregate limit of 10% of the paid up equity share capital of an Indian
company. The FEMA Laws further provide that the limit of 10% can be further increased up to 24%, by
passing a special resolution to that effect by the shareholders and followed by necessary filings with the
Reserve Bank of India. In relation to the proposed Offer, the Company proposes to increase the
aggregate limit of investment by non-resident Indians in the Company from 10% to 24 % of the paid-up
equity share capital. This would allow non-resident Indians to acquire to a greater extent the equity

25| Page



‘ Hilltone Software NOTICE
v & Gases Limited

shares proposed to be offered in the Offer and also allow effective postlisting trading in the Equity
Shares by non-resident Indians.

None of the Directors, key managerial personnel, senior management and relatives of Directors, key
managerial personnel and/or senior management (as defined in the Companies Act and SEBI ICDR
Regulations) are concerned or interested in the proposed resolution, except in the ordinary course of
business.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in ltem No.13 of the Notice for your approval as a Special
Resolution.

ITEM No. 14

In terms of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended, the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 (the “FEMA Rules”), the Master Direction — Foreign
Investment in India issued by RBI through Master Direction No. 11/2017-18 and the Consolidated Policy
Circular of 2017, as amended (together with the FEMA Rules, the “FEMA Laws”), the foreign portfolio
investors registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) can acquire and hold up to
an aggregate limit of 24% of the paid up equity share capital of a listed Indian company.

Further, in terms of the FEMA Rules, the FPI limit will automatically increase to the applicable sectoral
limit with effect from April 1, 2020, which can be decreased to a lower limit, as prescribed under the
FEMA Rules, by a special resolution to that effect by the shareholders prior to March 31, 2020.
Considering the proposal of intending for preferential issue from as FPI, the board of directors of the
Company (“Board”) has, at its meeting (“Board Resolution”), proposed, subject to the approval of the
shareholders by way of a special resolution, to increase the foreign investment limit of foreign portfolio
investor to 49% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out at Item No. 14 of the accompanying Notice for your
approval as a special resolution.

None of the directors or the key managerial personnel, of the Company or the relatives of the
aforementioned persons are interested in the said resolution.
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BOARD’S REPORT

HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED

Registered Office: B/4, K B Complex, Dairy Road, Mehsana Gujarat -384002, India
Phone: (02762) 255282 Fax No: (02762) 240055

Email: secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com Website www.hilltonegases.com

To

BOARD’S REPORT

The Members of,

HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED
Your directors have pleasure in submitting their 32" Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2025.
FINANCIAL RESULTS
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
The financial performance of the Company, for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2025 is
summarized below:
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PARTICULARS FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24

Revenue from Operations 752.49 684.53
Other Income 71.20 48.24
Profit Before Depreciation and Taxation 39.78 75.89
Less: Depreciation 16.03 13.59
Profit before Tax 23.75 62.30
Less: Current Tax (Net) 11.45 15.05

Deferred Tax/MAT Entitlement 27.99 (3.38)
Profit for the year (15.70) 50.64
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (15.70) 50.64

Earning per Equity Share
(Amount in Actual Rs.)

PARTICULARS Standalone
2024-25 | 2023-24
Basic (0.14) 0.63
Diluted (0.14) 0.63

(In Lac Rs)
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SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up Equity Share capital of the
Company is Rs. 10,93,08,000/-. During the
year under review, the company has
neither issued any shares with differential
voting rights nor granted any stock Option
nor any sweat Equity Shares.

The Board has proposed to issue
30,82,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
at a premium of Rs. 34/- as preferential
issue and the same is subject to approval
of shareholders in Annual General Meeting
to finance the expansion of Gas Division,
Engineering Division and Information
Technology Division.

DIVIDEND

In view of the loss in current financial year,
the Board of Directors have not
recommended any dividend on the Equity
Share Capital of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2025.
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND
PROTECTION FUND

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed
Dividend declared and paid last year, the
provisions of Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

During the year under review, the
Company has not transferred any amount
to General Reserve out of the amount
available for appropriation.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY:

Cash and Cash equivalent as at March
318t 2025 was Rs. 158.35 lacs. The
Company’s working capital management is
robust and involves a well-organised
process, which facilitates continuous
monitoring and control over receivables,
inventories and other parameters
DEPOSIT

During the year, the Company has not
accepted any deposit within the meaning of
Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment(s) for the time being in force)
from the public or the members and as
such, no amount on account of principal or
interest on public is outstanding.
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ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

Your Company has established adequate
internal financial control systems to ensure
reliable financial reporting and compliance
with laws and regulations. All resources are
put to optimal use and adequately
protected against any loss.

Internal control systems commensurate
with its size and operations to ensure
orderly and efficient conduct of business
while safeguarding the assets, quality, and
safety, procurements, finance and
accounts and reducing and detecting error.
The Company also has appointed an
external firm of Chartered Accountants to
supplement the efficient Internal Audit.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis
Report as required under Regulation
34(2)(e) read with Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015 is provided
in a separate section and forms an integral
part of this Report and is annexed as
Annexure A.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maintaining of high standards of Corporate
Governance has been fundamental to the
business of your Company since its
inception.

Your Company always endeavors to
adhere to the highest standards of
corporate governance, which are within the
control of the Company. A comprehensive
Report on Corporate Governance inter-alia
highlighting the endeavors of the Company
in ensuring transparency, integrity and
accountability in its functioning has been
incorporated as a separate section, forming
a part of the Annual Report as Annexure
B. The certificate issued by Practicing
Company Secretaries on Compliance with
Corporate Governance is annexed to the
Report on Corporate Governance.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
entered by the Company during the
previous financial year with the related
parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on arms’ length basis. There
were no materially significant related party
transactions entered by the Company with
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its Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other persons which may
have potential conflict with the interest of
the Company. All Related Party
transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee  for  approval,  wherever
applicable. Prior omnibus approval for
normal business transactions is also
obtained from the Audit Committee for the
related party transactions which are of
repetitive nature and accordingly, the
required disclosures are made to the
Committee on a quarterly basis in terms of
the approval of the Committee. The
disclosure of Related Party Transactions
as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the
Act in Form AOC - 2 is annexed as
Annexure C. The Related Party
Transactions took placed during the
financial year 2024-25 have placed in
Notes of Financial Statements of the
Company.

The policy on Related Party Transactions
as approved by the Board may be
accessed through the web link:
https://hilltonegases.com/codes-and-
policies.php

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL &
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of  Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as
Annexure D to this report

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The particulars of employees required to
be furnished pursuant to section 197 (12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub
rules 2 and 3 of Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, are not
applicable to the Company as there was no
employee in receipt of remuneration under
this section.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Appointment and Resignation of
Directors/KMP

During the F.Y 2024-25, the following
changes were made in Board of Directors
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i. The Following Non-Executive
Independent Directors are appointed
Sr. | Name of Director Date of
No Appointment
1. | ADITYA 03/01/2025
VIKRAMBHAI PATEL
2. | NIHAR GAURANG
SHETH
3. | PARESH
RAMESHCHANDRA
PAREKH
ii. The Following Directors have
resigned from the company
Sr. | Name Director Date of
No Resignation
1. PARULBEN 03/01/2025
NIKETKUMAR
SHAH
2. SHAILESHKUMAR
AMBALAL PATEL
3. AMITKUMAR
TRIVEDI

iii. The Board regrets to inform that Mr.
Sunil Purohit, Non-Executive
Independent Director was deceased
during the year under review

iv. The Board in its meeting dated
01/09/2025, decided to appoint Ms.
Dipika Modi (DIN: 11269866) as Non-
Executive Independent Director for a
period of Five years subject to approval
from shareholders as special
Resolution in Annual General Meeting.

CEOI/CFO Certification

The requisite certification from the

Managing Director and Chief Financial

Officer required to be given under

Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of

Schedule Il of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,

2015. The aforesaid certificate, duly

signed by the Managing Director and Chief

Financial Officer in respect of the financial

year ended 31 March 2025, has been

placed before the Board. (Annexure E)

Retirement by Rotations

In accordance with the provisions of

section 152 (6) of the Act and in terms of

the Articles of Association of the Company,

Mrs. Sapna Shah (DIN: 08615859), will

retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual

General Meeting and being eligible, offers
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herself for re-appointment. The board
recommends her re-appointment.

Profile of Directors Seeking
Appointment / Re-appointment

As required under Regulation 36 (3) of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
particulars of Directors seeking
appointment / re-appointment at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting are
annexed to Annexure | of the notice
convening 32" Annual General Meeting.
Training of Independent Directors

To familiarise the new inductees with the
strategy, operations and functions of our
Company, the executive directors / senior
managerial personnel make presentations
to the inductees about the Company’s'
strategy, operations, product and service
offerings, organisation structure, finance,
human resources, technology, quality and
facilities. Further, the Company has
devised a Familiarisation Program for
Independent Directors as per Regulation
46 (2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and the same has been placed on the
website of the Company at:
https://hilltonegases.com/codes-and-
policies.php

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies
Act 2013, the following are the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company as
on 31st March, 2025:
Mr. Niket Shah Managing Director
Mr. Hital M. Shah Whole time Director
Mrs. Hinisha Patel Company Secretary
Mr. Prafull Makwana CFO

Evaluation of Performance of the Board,
its Committees and Individual Directors
During the year, the evaluation of the
annual performance of individual directors
including the Chairman of the Company
and Independent Directors, Board and
Committees of the Board was carried out
under the provisions of the Act and
relevant Rules and the Corporate
Governance requirements as prescribed
under Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations,
2015 and the circular with respect to
Guidance Note on Board Evaluation. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
had approved the indicative criteria for the
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evaluation based on the SEBI Guidance
Note on Board Evaluation.

The Exercise was carried out through a
structured evaluation process covering the
various aspects of the Board’s functioning
such as composition of board &
committees, experience & competencies,
performance of specific duties &
obligations, governance issues etc.

The evaluation of the independent
Directors was carried out by Board, except
the independent Director being evaluated
and the chairperson and the non-
independent Directors was carried out by
the independent Directors.

Board of Director Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board are held at
least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review
the quarterly, half yearly and annual
financial results of the Company. Additional
Board meetings are convened to discuss
and decide on various business policies,
strategies and other businesses.

The Board business generally includes
consideration of important corporate
actions and events including:-

. quarterly and annual result
announcements;

» oversight of the performance of the
business;

» development and approval of overall
business strategy;

* Board succession planning;

+ review of the functioning of the
Committees and

+ other strategic, transactional and
governance matters as required under the
Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations
and other applicable legislations.

The notice of Board meeting is given well
in advance to all the Directors. Usually,
meetings of the Board are held in Mehsana
or at the factory office at Santej. The
Agenda of the Board Meetings is set by the
Company Secretary in consultation with the
Chairman and the Managing Director and
Whole time Director of the Company. The
Agenda is circulated a week prior to the
date of the meeting. The Board Agenda
includes an Action Taken Report
comprising the actions emanating from the
Board Meetings and status update thereof.
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The Agenda for the Board Meetings covers
items set

out as per the guidelines in Listing
Regulations to the extent it is relevant and
applicable. The Agenda for the Board
Meetings include detailed notes on the
items to be discussed at the meeting to
enable the Directors to take an informed
decision.

Prior approval from the Board is obtained
for circulating the Agenda items with
shorter notice for matters that form part of
the Board Agenda and are considered to
be in the nature of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information.

The minutes of proceeding of each Board
meetings are maintained in terms of
statutory provisions.

During the year under review, the Board of
Directors of the Company met Nine times.
The Dates of meeting are as under:

Meeting Number Date of Meeting
01/2024-25 11/05/2024
02/2024-25 04/06/2024
03/2024-25 14/08/2024
04/2024-25 19/09/2024
05/2024-25 24/10/2024
06/2024-25 12/11/2024
07/2024-25 03/01/2025
08/2024-25 06/02/2025
09/2024-25 08/03/2025
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b. Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

c. Stakeholders’ Grievances and
Relationship Committee and Share
Transfer Committee

d. Risk Management Committee.

. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of the Audit Committee is
in alignment with the provisions of Section
177 of the companies Act, 2013 read with
the Rules issued there wunder and
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

All the Members of the Audit Committee
are well Qualified, experienced and
possess sound knowledge of finance,
accounting practices and internal controls.
The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the Company Secretary of the
Audit Committee.

All the recommendations made by the
Audit Committee were accepted by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
MEETING AND ATTENDENCE

During the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2025, the Audit Committee met
Four times as follows and the requisite
Quorum was present.

1) 11/05/2024 2) 14/08/2024

3) 24/10/2024 4) 06/02/2025
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

13. COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF

DIRECTORS The composition of the Nomination &

The Board of Directors has constituted
Board Committees to deal with specific
areas and activities which concern the
Company and requires a closer review.
The Board Committees are formed with
approval of the Board and function under
their respective Charters. These
Committees play an important role in the
overall management of day-to-day affairs
and governance of the Company. The
Board Committees meet at regular intervals
and take necessary steps to perform its
duties entrusted by the Board. The Minutes
of the Committee Meetings are placed
before the Board for noting.

The Board of Directors of the Company
have constituted the following Committees:
a. Audit Committee
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Remuneration Committee is in alignment
with the provisions of Section 178 of the
companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules
issued there under and Regulation19 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
MEETING AND ATTENDENCE

During the Financial Year 2024-25 the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
met thrice on 14" August, 2024, 24"
October, 2024 and 03™ January, 2025 and
the requisite Quorum was present.
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE AND SHARE TRANSFER
COMMITTEE

The compliance with the provisions of
Section 178 of the companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules issued there under and
Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing
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Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board has
constituted  Stakeholders  Relationship
Committee and share transfer committee.
The Committee is entrusted with the
responsibility of addressing the
stakeholders' / investors' complaints with
respect to share transfers, non-receipt of
annual reports, dividend payments, issue
of duplicate shares, etc and other
shareholders related queries, complaints,
as well as relating to transfer of shares,
Review and approval of all requests
pertaining to sub-division, consolidation,
transfer, transmission of shares and issue
of duplicate share certificates; etc.

There were 1 meeting of Stakeholders
Relationship Committee & Share transfer
Committee meeting held during the year as
under:

1)14/08/2024

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy
which lays down a framework in relation to
remuneration of directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management of the
Company. This policy also lays down
criteria for selection and appointment of the
board members.
DECLARATION BY
DIRECTORS

All the independent Directors of your
company have given their declarations,
that they meet the criteria of independence
as laid down under Section 149(6) of the
Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2015.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR
REPORT

The Board has duly reviewed the Statutory
Auditors’ Report for the year ended on 31%
March, 2025 and the observations and
comments, appearing in the report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further
explanation / clarification by the Board of
Directors as provided under section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules made there under,
M/S K.C Parikh & Associates, Chartered

INDEPENDENT
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Accountants  (Firm  Registration  No.
107550W), are appointed for a period of
five years from the conclusion of the 30"
Annual General Meeting held on 29th
September, 2023 until the conclusion of the
35" Annual General Meeting to be held in
the year 2028. However, during the current
FY 2025-26 the Auditor have resigned due
to difference in Audit fees expectations of
Auditor and as approved by Management.
Hence, the Board in its meeting held on
02" July, 2025 has decided to appoint M/s.
Ashvin K. Yagnik & Co., Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 100710W), as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to fill the casual
vacancy subject to approval of
Shareholders in Annual General Meeting.
INTERNAL AUDITOR AND THEIR
REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139
of the Companies Act, 2013 and The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, during
the year under review the Internal Audit of
the functions and activities of the Company
was undertaken by the Internal Auditors of
the Company by BPA & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm
Registration No. 109685W), the Internal
Auditors of the Company for F.Y 2024-25.
For FY 2025-26 the company has
appointed M/s Dipesh Choksi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 114533W)
as Internal Auditors.

There were no adverse remarks or
qualification on accounts of the Company
from the Internal Auditors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR
REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had
appointed M/s. HUSSAIN BOOTWALA &
ASSOCIATES, COMPANY
SECRETARIES IN PRACTICE having
Membership No. A49591 and COP no.
23980 to undertake the Secretarial Audit of
the Company for the FY 2024-25. The
Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2024-25
is annexed to this Directors’ Report as
Annexure-F. The Board of Directors has
duly reviewed the Secretarial Auditors’
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Report and the observations and
comments, appearing in the report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further
explanation/clarification by the Board of
Directors as provided under section 134 of
the Act.

COST AUDITORS
The section 148 read with Companies

(Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other20.

applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company Hence, the Board of
Directors of your company had not been
appointed Cost Auditor for obtaining Cost
Compliance Report of the company for the
financial year 2024-25.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,
GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As per Section 186 of the Act, the details of
Loans, Guarantees or Investments made
as on 315 March, 2025 are given below:

Name of Party Nature Loan
of Trans- Amt
actions (In.
Lakhs M.
Rs.)
Harsha R Jhaveri Debt 78.10
Jeevan Jyoti Vanijya | Debt 96.45
Ltd
Leading Leasing | Debt 225.20
Finance And
Investment Company
Ltd
22.
PARTICULARS REGARDING
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The Particulars as prescribed under sub-
section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, forms
an integral part of this report and is
annexed as Annexure — G.

CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the provisions of
section 135 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 Made
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there under, the Company has not
developed and implemented the following
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives
as the said provisions are not applicable.
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any
Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate
Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER
POLICY

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company,
which also incorporates a whistle blower
policy in compliance with the provisions of
Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the SEBI
(LODR), 2015, includes an Ethics &
Compliance Task Force comprising senior
executives of the Company. Protected
disclosures can be made by a whistle
blower through an e-mail or a letter to the
Task Force or to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Vigil Mechanism and
Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on
the Company’s website at
https://hilltonegases.com/codes-and-
policies.php

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:
Your company has adopted the “Code of
Conduct on Prohibition of insider trading
“and” Code of Conduct for Directors and

Senior Management Personnel” for
regulating the dissemination of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
and trading in security by insiders.
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT  OF WOMAN AT
WORKPLACE:

The company has in place the “Policy on
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the
workplace” in line the requirements of the
sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act 2013. The Company had
constituted Internal Complaints committee
(ICC) to redress the complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. During the
year under review, no complaints were
received by the Committee for Redressal.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT:

The Business Responsibility Report as per
Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the



24,

25.

26.

C Hilltone Software
v & Gases Limited

Company as the Company does not fall
under top 500 listed Companies on the
basis of market capitalization.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The company considers its employees as
its most valuable assets. The company
focuses on building an organization
through induction and development of
talent to meet current and future needs.
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
the Board hereby submit its responsibility
Statement:—

a. in the preparation of the annual
accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material

departures;
b. the directors had selected such
accounting policies and applied them

consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss
of the company for that period;

c. the directors had taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act
for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual
accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. The directors had laid down internal
financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating
effectively.

f. the directors had devised proper
systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

STOCK EXCHANGES

The Company is listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange and was listed on Calcutta
Stock Exchange. The members can trade
their shares on the Bombay Stock
exchange. The Company has successfully
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delisted from Calcutta Stock Exchange as
on 15" April, 2025.

27. RISK MANAGEMENT

28.

29.

30.

31.

Risk management is embedded in your
Company’s operating framework. Your
Company believes that managing risks
helps in maximising returns. The
Company’s approach to addressing
business risks is comprehensive and
includes periodic review of such risks and
a framework for mitigating controls and
reporting mechanism of such risks. The
risk management framework is reviewed
periodically by the Board and the Audit
Committee.
AFFIRMATION AND DISCLOSURE:
All the Members of the Board and the
Senior Management Personnel have
affirmed their compliance with the Code of
Conduct as on 31%t March, 2025 and a
declaration to that effect, signed by the
Managing Director, forms an integral part
of this report and is annexed as Annexure
-H
MATERIAL CHANGES AND
COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There are no material changes and
commitments, affecting the financial
position of the Company which has
occurred between the end of financial year
and the date of Directors’ Report except
as follows:
The Company has taken steps to expand
business in the information Technology
sector, for which the negotiations with
Company based in United States of
America are being undertaken.
SIGNIFICANT AND
ORDERS:
There were no significant and material
orders passed by any Regulators or courts
or Tribunals during the year ended 31%t
March, 2025 impacting the going concern
status and company’s operations in future.
LISTING FEES:
The Company’s Equity Shares are listed
with  Bombay Stock Exchange. The
Company has paid Listing Fees for the
financial year 2025-26 to BSE within the
prescribed time period.

MATERIAL
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WEBSITE

As per Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, your Company has
maintained a functional website namely
https://www.hilltonegases.com/” containing
the information about the Company. The
website of the Company is also containing
information like Policies, Shareholding
Pattern, Financial Results and information of
the designated officials of the Company who
are responsible for assisting and handling
investor grievances for the benefit of all
stakeholders of the Company, etc.

CYBER SECURITY:

In view of increased cyberattack scenarios,
the cyber security maturity is reviewed
periodically and the processes, technology
controls are being enhanced in-line with the
threat  scenarios. Your  Company’s
technology environment is enabled with real
time security monitoring with requisite
controls at various layers starting from end
user machines to network, application and
the data

INSURANCE

Your Company has taken appropriate
insurance for all assets against foreseeable
perils

OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a) The Company has complied with
Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India
on Meetings of the Board of Directors and
General Meetings.

b) There was no application made or any
proceeding pending under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the
year.

c) There was no instance of onetime
settlement with any Bank or Financial
Institution.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE

Your directors state that no disclosure or
reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no
transactions/events of this nature during the
year under review:

1.Details relating to deposits covered under
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.
2.Issue of equity shares with differential
rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
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3.Issue of Shares (Including Sweat Equity
Shares) to employees of the Company
under any scheme.

4.No significant or material orders passed
by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and
the Company’s operation in future.

5.Voting rights which are not directly
exercised by the employees in respect of
shares for the subscription/ purchase of
which loan was given by the Company (as
there is no scheme pursuant to which such
persons can beneficially hold shares as
envisaged under section 67(3)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013).

6. There has been no change in the nature
of business of your Company.

7. An application made or any proceeding is
pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

8.There was no instance of onetime
settlement with any Bank or Financial
Institution.

9.Revision of financial statements and
Directors’ Report of your Company.
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ANNEXURE A
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALAYSIS
REPORT
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) and
Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations
2015)

Your directors have pleasure in presenting

the “Management Discussion and Analysis

Report” for the Financial Year ended on 31%

March, 2025.

A. OVERALL REVIEW OF THE
COMPANY “HILLTONE SOFTWARE
AND GASES LIMITED”:

Established in 1993, Hilltone Software and
Gases Limited has attained the leadership
position in the Manufacturing and Supply of
Industrial and Medical Gases due to its
excellent credentials, zeal to excel and an
unswerving commitment to quality.
The Company has its plant at Santej using
the latest technology and process to obtain
the best quality Medical Oxygen and
complete in-house analytical set to control
our process at all stages. We also providing
the entire range of industrial gases and
medical gases like Nitrous Oxide - Bulk 'A’
Type, Oxygen/ Nitrogen/ Co2/ D.A, Helium
etc. We supplying Medical Gases to many
reputed Hospitals and medical institutions
like S.A.L hospital and medical institute,
Krishna Heart Institute and many more (List
of major customers enclosed herewith) in
Trolleys of 40 cylinders on regular basis.
Hilltone Software and Gases Limited has a
strong focus on Research and Development
for process improvement, cost reduction and
new product development. This is evident in
the fact that Hilltone continuously modifies its
production process to enhance flexibility on
the use of various types and quality of the
raw materials.

The Company has started Software Business

during the year under review.

Further, the following information on the

economy and industry is based on the

various reports on industry and websites and
the Company is not responsible for any
discrepancy/error in the information.

B. OVERVIEW OF THE GLOBAL

ECONOMY:

Global growth is projected at 3.0 percent

for 2025 and 3.1 percent in 2026, an

upward revision from the April 2025 World

36| Page

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS REPORT

Economic Outlook. This reflects front-
loading ahead of tariffs, lower effective
tariff rates, better financial conditions, and
fiscal expansion in some  major
jurisdictions. Global inflation is expected to
fall, but India inflation is predicted to stay
around 4.2%. Downside risks from
potentially higher tariffs, elevated
uncertainty, and geopolitical tensions
persist. Restoring confidence,
predictability, and sustainability remains a
key policy priority.

C. OVERVIEW OF THE

ECONOMY:

India’s GDP growth numbers for the last
quarter of fiscal 2024 to 2025 came as a
welcome surprise, with the economy growing
at a brisk 7.4% year on year. Growth for the
full fiscal year came in at 6.5%, driven by
strong private consumption expenditure and
investments, indicating domestic demand
might be more resilient than expected,
supported by easing inflation and favorable
conditions in rural economies.

Private final consumption expenditure grew
6% in the last quarter of fiscal year 2024 to
2025. Although consumption spending
growth slowed this quarter, annual growth
was 7.2%, which was well ahead of overall
GDP growth.

What came as a relief is that, after years of
being led primarily by the government, green
shoots were visible in private investment,
suggesting broader participation in capex
formation. Gross fixed capital formation rose
by a strong 9.4% in the fourth quarter, up
from an average of 6.2% in the last three
quarters. However, full-year gross fixed
capital formation growth was more modest at
6.7%; the fourth-quarter acceleration may
suggest that private capex may have turned
the corner, as consumption spending
showed signs of improvement.

The impact of global risks and trade
headwinds led to a moderation in exports to
3.9% in the fourth quarter compared with an
average 7.4% seen in the past three
quarters. Nonetheless, exports for the full
fiscal year grew at 6.3%, an improvement
compared with the 2.2% seen in fiscal year
2023 to 2024. Goods exports were affected
more than services exports, and the latter
helped India to reduce its annual current

INDIAN



C Hilltone Software
v & Gases Limited

account balance to -0.6% of GDP—the
lowest since fiscal 2016 to 2017 (except
during the pandemic when the balance
moved to a surplus).

Government capex was relatively restrained
in the fourth quarter, with revised estimates
being 12.2% lower than the budgeted
effective capex for the entire fiscal year.
Government spending contracted for the
quarter by 1.8%—the sharpest fall since the
second quarter of fiscal 2022 to 2023,
bringing down annual spending growth to just
2.3%.

Lower government spending brought down
the fiscal deficit to 4.8% of GDP in fiscal year
2024 to 2025, despite it being an election
year. The latest data points to further
improvement in the fiscal position in the first
two months of the current fiscal year. The
government’s cumulative fiscal deficit, which
stands at 0.8% of the annual target, is at its
lowest since Aprii 1997 (when the
government began publishing monthly
economic data).

The other big factor has been falling inflation,
which had been easing since the beginning
of the fiscal year, but fell to 2.1% in June
2025, marking the lowest levels since
January 2019. This came as a big relief for
Indian consumers and policymakers, who
saw it as an opportunity to aggressively
pursue easing monetary policy and cut policy
rates by 100 basis points between February
and June.

D. INDUSTRY INSIGHT

Indian Industrial and Medical Gas
Industry

The India medical gas market size reached
USD 715.50 Million in 2024. Looking
forward, IMARC Group expects the market
to reach USD 1,656.70 Million by 2033,
exhibiting a growth rate (CAGR) of 9.03%
during 2025-2033. The India medical gas
market is driven by rapid healthcare
infrastructure expansion, increasing
adoption of advanced medical devices,
rising demand for home healthcare services,
government initiatives like the Ayushman
Bharat scheme, and growing investments in
domestic medical gas production, ensuring a
steady supply to support hospitals, clinics,
and emergency medical care. The rising
utilization of industrial gases across various
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industries, such as steel manufacturing,
pharmaceuticals, healthcare, etc., as they
aid in optimizing processes, improving
efficiency, streamlining operations, reducing
costs, and increasing overall productivity, is
primarily driving the India industrial gases
market.

The Company has increased its total number

of customer touch points through the growing

network. Currently your company is catering
to the need of Domestic Markets only but the

Company’s products have good demand in

the international markets. The product wise

performance of the Company is briefly
described herein below.

(A) Oxygen: Oxygen is required in steel
melting, fabrication, copper smelting,
medical applications, etc. The use of
oxygen improves the thermal efficiency
of fuel. As a result, oxygen is used as a
method of better energy production from
available fuel. Oxygenation in different
furnaces including those for steel,
copper, cement production, etc will
improve efficiency in energy generation.
Similarly, oxygen can be used for
hazardous waste clean -up, pollution
treatment of water and in coal
gasification systems. It can also be used
as a replacement of chlorine in paper
and pulp industry to reduce pollution.
Your Company manufactures Oxygen
for both medical and Industrial use. The
Production in this year has Increased of
Oxygen to cater the high supply in the
market.

(B) Nitrogen: Nitrogen is an inert material
and is used in heat -treatment to create
a neutral atmosphere. It is also used for
the removal of air from contaminated
mines having methane to avoid
occurrence of fire. Huge quantities of
nitrogen are used in blast furnaces and
other furnace applications to make use
of its neutral properties. It is also used
as a source of nitrogenous fertiliser from
ammonia which is obtained from the
synthesis of nitrogen with hydrogen.
Ammonia is also the starting point of
chemicals like nitric acid, hydrazine and
amines. Liquid nitrogen is used for
cryogenic applications to take advantage
of its low temperature properties in many
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applications like solvent extraction,
recycling tires, food and pharmaceutical
industry, hospitals, artificial insemination,
enhanced oil recovery etc. Your
Company manufactures Nitrogen for
both medical and Industrial use. The
Production in this year has Increased of
Nitrogen to cater the high supply in the
market.

Argon: Your Company is involved in
trading Argon Gas. Argon is known as
'Noble gas'. It does not mix with oxygen
and is used in stainless and alloy steel
production, MIG and TIG method of
welding. Argon is also used in light bulbs
for creating an inert atmosphere to
increase the life of tungsten filaments.
Hydrogen: Your Company is involved in
trading Hydrogen. Hydrogen is presently
made by the electrolysis of water and its
production consumes a lot of energy. In
spite of this handicap, it is used for the
manufacture of edible oil fats like
margarine from vegetable oils. Hydrogen
is used to create a reducing atmosphere
in heat -treatment furnaces. It is also
needed for the manufacture of silicon
chips. Liquid hydrogen is used as fuel in
space shuttles. With the availability of
hydrogen as a by-product from some
chemical processes, its use has been
growing. Many consider hydrogen as a
future source of energy. Hydrogen is
also used to remove sulphur from sour
crude oil which is gaining ground
because of emphasis on environmental
protection.

Carbon Dioxide: Gas Carbon Dioxide
gas is traded by your Company. CO2is
mainly used in food industry for
carbonating beer, soft drinks, etc. Liquid
carbon dioxide is used as a refrigerant in
food industry. Carbon dioxide gas is
used as a de -oxidant/insecticide for
food preservation, foundry applications
and fire-fighting. Solid and liquid carbon-
dioxide is used in many cryogenic
applications, as in blood storage.
Helium: This is a very light gas and is
nobler than Argon. It is used in deep sea
diving, balloons and many other
applications including high  quality
electric welding and leak detection.
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Liquid Helium is used in MRIs at
hospitals for its  supra-conductive
characteristics. Your Company is

involved in trading of this gas.

E. RISK AND CONCERN

The company has an effective framework
for assessment and mitigation of the risk.
The management of the Company
identifies, reviews and develops a plan for
reducing risks. Current global and domestic
headwinds need to be closely monitored
for their impact on the business operations.
The Company has put in place appropriate
measure for its mitigation including
business portfolio risk, financial risk and
legal risk and internal process risk.

F. FUTURE SCENARIO

We believe that the application of industrial
gases will grow in all areas of
manufacturing industry. Products like CNG,
LNG and LCNG should join the portfolio
since the nature of these products are
similar. Shale gas is yet another area for
growth of the industry. We think the country
has challenges from 3Es, namely Energy,
Environment and Eatables. These areas
need a helping hand from the industrial gas
industry to solve their problems.

With rapid urbanization in the close vicinity of
the plant, the Company will be investing
more on environmental protection systems,
policies and practices, leading to a possible
increase in

the cost of production. Your Company aims
at enhancing and maximizing shareholders
value by achieving appropriate trade-off
between risk & returns.

G. HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources play a critical role in
driving Hilltone’s strategies and growth.
The Company endeavours to become the
best place to work for its employees and to
provide them with a nurturing environment
that is essential for their growth. Hilltone
has implemented comprehen-sive and
well-structured HR policies to ensure
employee growth both at personal and
professional levels. The Company’s talent
pool comprises a diverse set of
experienced and skilled people who play
key roles in enhancing business efficiency,
devising strategies, setting up systems and
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evolving business as per industry
requirements. The Company provides a
safe, conducive and productive work
environment to its people. Hilltone’s strong
organisational culture also enables it to
attract talented resources. The Company
conducts regular training programmes for
employees to ensure skill upgradation and
personnel development. High employee
retention levels is a key outcome of these
initiate.
H. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND
THEIR ADEQUACY
Your Company has an adequate system of
internal controls to ensure that all the assets
are safeguarded and are productive.
Necessary checks and controls are in place
to ensure that transactions are properly
verified, adequately authorized, correctly
recorded and properly reported. The Internal
Auditors of the Company conduct Audit of
various departments to ensure that internal
controls are in place and are submitting
quarterly reports to the Audit Committee. The
management maintains adequate internal
financial control systems encompassing its
entire  business  operations, statutory
compliances and Financial Reports.
CONCLUSION
Your Company’s primary focus will be to
grow volumes across markets. The Company
will address each market depending on local
conditions and consumer trends. While we
recognize that the global environment is
extremely challenging, there are new
opportunities emerging to meet consumer
needs. Your Company will focus on profitable
growth through a mix of brand led growth,
innovation and cost efficiencies.

On behalf of the Board of Director

NIKET M. SHAH
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00278968
Date: 01/09/2025
Place: Mehsana

HITAL M. SHAH
(Executive Director)
DIN: 00279026
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“Annexure — B”
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Your directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended
318t March, 2025 in compliance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’).
1. THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance is a synthesis of business elements & ethics encompassing accountability,
transparency, fairness, responsibility, risk management and sustainability that not only enhances
the organizational growth and values but also generates trust among all its shareholders and other
stakeholders.
The Directors and Management of the Company believes in constructive and progressive Corporate
Governance principle and are committed to maintain high standards of Corporate Governance in
conducting its business and ensure that an effective self-regulatory mechanism exists to protect the
interest of all the Stakeholders be it Investors, Customers, Employees, Suppliers, Financiers,
Government and Community at large.
The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under the provisions of Regulations
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 read with Regulation
34(2) and Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A. COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS: -
The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders, for overseeing the Company’s
overall functioning. It provides strategic direction, leadership and guidance to the Company’s
management as also monitors the performance of the Company with the objective of creating long-
term value for the Company’s stakeholders.
The following is the Composition of the Board as at 31st March, 2025:

Names of the Director Category
NIKETBHAI MAHENDRABHAI SHAH Chairman& Managing Director (Promoter)
HITALKUMAR SHAH Whole-Time Director (Promoter)
SAPNABEN HITALBHAI SHAH Non-Executive Director (Promoter)
ADITYA VIKRAMBHAI PATEL Non-Executive Independent Director
NIHAR GAURANG SHETH Non-Executive Independent Director
PARESH RAMESHCHANDRA PAREKH Non-Executive Independent Director

During the year under review, the composition of the Board of Directors was in conformity with the
provisions of Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Regulation 17 of the
Listing Regulations during the period under review. The strength of the Board of Directors as on 31¢
March, 2025 consisted of Six (6) Directors comprising of Two (2) Executive Director, One (1) Non-
Executive Non Independent Director (Non-Executive Woman Directors) and Three (3) Non-
Executive Independent Directors. The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of
professionalism, knowledge and experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities.
The Board presently, does not have any nominee director.

The Independent Directors are enough as per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Listing Regulations. 1 out of 6 members is women Director. The Company has received
confirmation from all the existing IDs of their registration on the Independent Directors Database
maintained by the Institute of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Based on the disclosures received from all the IDs, the
Board is of the opinion that the IDs fulfill the conditions of Independence as specified in the Act, the
SEBI Listing Regulations and they are independent of the Management.

None of the Directors on the Board hold the office of Director in more than 20 companies, including
10 public companies, as disclosed under Section 184 of the Act read with Rules framed thereunder.
None of the IDs serve as IDs in more than 7 listed entities and none of the IDs are Whole-time
Directors / Managing Directors in any listed entity. Furthermore, none of the Whole-time Directors of
the Company serve as IDs in more than 3 listed entities. In accordance with Regulation 26 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the Directors are members in more than 10 committees or act as
chairperson of more than 5 committees [the committees being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee] across all public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. All Non-
Independent Directors are liable to retire by rotation.
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Pursuant to Regulation 27(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company also submited a
quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance to the Calcutta Stock Exchange and Bombay
Stock Exchange, where it is listed within 21 days from the close of every quarter. The Managing
Director and the Chief Financial Officer (‘CFO’) have certified to the Board inter alia, on the
accuracy of the financial statements and adequacy of internal controls for financial reporting, in
accordance with Regulation 17(8) read together with Part B of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, pertaining to CEO and CFO certification for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025.
In view of the scope and the nature of the Company’s operations, the present size of the Board is
appropriate for effective decision making. The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for the
management, general affairs, direction, performance and long-term success of business.

B. ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD & ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: -

The Board meets at regular intervals on a quarterly basis to discuss and decide on business policies
and strategies apart from other Board businesses. An ad-hoc meeting is convened as and when
circumstances require. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s
approval is taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as permitted by law, which are noted and
confirmed in the subsequent Board Meeting.

The Company in consultation with the Directors prepares the Annual calendar of meetings and
circulates a tentative Schedule for the meeting of the Board and Committee in order to facilitate the
Directors to plan their schedules.

During the F.Y. 2024-25, the Board meetings were held through physical mode at the Registered
Office of the Company situated at B/4, K B COMPLEX, DAIRY ROAD, MEHSANA, Gujarat, India,
384002. The details of attendance of the Directors at the Board Meeting during the year and at
Annual General Meeting are given below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Name of Director Category of Directors Board Meeting | Last AGM
attended Attended

*Mrs. PARULBEN Chairman and Non-Executive | 7 Yes

NIKETKUMAR SHAH Director

Mr. NIKETBHAI Executive Director- Managing | 9 Yes

MAHENDRABHAI Director

SHAH

Mr. HITALKUMAR Executive Director-Whole-Time | 9 Yes

SHAH Director

Mr. SAPNABEN Non-Executive Director 9 Yes

HITALBHAI SHAH

*Mr. AMITKUMAR Non-Executive - Independent | 7 No

TRIVEDI Director

*Mr. Non-Executive - Independent | 7 No

SHAILESHKUMAR Director

AMBALAL PATEL

***Mr. SUNIL Non-Executive - Independent | 5 Yes

VISHNUPRASAD Director

PUROHIT

**Mr. ADITYA Non-Executive - Independent | 2 No

VIKRAMBHAI PATEL Director

**Mr. NIHAR Non-Executive - Independent | 2 No

GAURANG SHETH Director

**Mr. PARESH Non-Executive - Independent | 2 No

RAMESHCHANDRA Director

PAREKH

*Directors resigned during the year under review

**Directors appointed during the year under review
***Directors deceased during the year under review
C. DIRECTORSHIP AND MEMBERSHIP IN COMMITTEES: -
The Company has obtained the requisite disclosures from the Directors in respect of their
Directorship and Membership in Committees of other Companies, the details of which are given

below:
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Name of Director Category of | Directorship No. of **Committee

Directors in other | Positions held in
*Companies Indian Companies
Member | Chairman

Mr. NIKETBHAI Executive Director- 1 1 0

MAHENDRABHAI SHAH Managing Director

Mr. HITALKUMAR SHAH Executive Director- 0 1 0
Whole-Time Director

Mr. SAPNABEN Non-Executive 0 0 0

HITALBHAI SHAH Director

Mr. ADITYA Non-Executive - 6 6 4

VIKRAMBHAI PATEL Independent Director

Mr. NIHAR GAURANG Non-Executive - 0 1 0

SHETH Independent Director

Mr. PARESH Non-Executive -

RAMESHCHANDRA Independent Director 0 2 1

PAREKH

* Includes Directorships held in Listed and Unlisted Public Limited Companies and Private Limited
Companies other than HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED

**Committees considered are Audit Committee & Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of all the
Public Limited Companies including HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED.

All the Directors are in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, in this
regard.

None of the Directors are holding directorship in any other listed entities.

D. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD: -

During the year under review, 9 Board Meetings were held on 11/05/2024, 04/06/2024, 14/08/2024,
19/09/2024, 24/10/2024, 12/11/2024, 03/01/2025, 06/02/2025 and 08/03/2025. The quorum for the
meeting of the Board of Directors is one-third of the Board of Directors or two Directors, whichever
is higher, including atleast one ID and during the year, the requisite quorum was present for all
Board meetings. The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings was less than one hundred
and twenty days.

E. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTOR INTER-SE: -

Except Mr. HITALKUMAR SHAH, Mr. NIKETBHAI MAHENDRABHAI SHAH and Mrs. SAPNABEN
HITALBHAI SHAH who are related to each other, none of the Directors of the Company have any
inter-se relationship.

F. NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: -

Particulars of number of Equity Shares held by the Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2025
are given below:

Name of Non-Executive Director No. of Equity Shares held
Mrs. SAPNABEN HITALBHAI SHAH 7200

G. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: -
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25(7) and Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
kindly refer to the Company’s website
http://hilltonegases.com/pdf/codesandpolicies/Familiarization%200f%20Independent%20Director.pd
f for details of the familiarization programme for IDs.

Independent Directors are taken through a detailed induction and familiarization Programme when
they join the Board of your Company. As part of the induction sessions, the Managing Director
provide an overview of the organization, history, culture, values and purpose. The Business and
Functional Heads take the Independent Directors through their respective businesses and functions.
H. SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board as on 31st March, 2025 comprises of qualified members who bring in the required skills,
competencies and expertise that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its
Committees.
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The matrix below summarizes the list of core skills, expertise, competencies identified by the Board
as required in the context of the Company’s business and as possessed by individual members of
the Board. —

Name of | Entre | Strat | Fina | Taxa | Tech | Produ | Marke | Resear | Legal and

Director prene | egic | nce |tion | nical | ction |ting ch and | Regulatory
ur/ Plann Expe Develop
Leade | ing rtise ment
rship

Mr. N N \ \ \/ \ N V N

NIKETBHAI

MAHENDRA

BHAI SHAH

Mr. N N \ \ - - \ N N

HITALKUMA

R SHAH

Mr. N N - - V - - - V

SAPNABEN

HITALBHAI

SHAH

Mr. ADITYA |V V \ \ - - - - V

VIKRAMBHA

| PATEL

Mr. NIHAR | Y N N \ - - - - v

GAURANG

SHETH

Mr. PARESH | - \ \ - - - - v

RAMESHCH

ANDRA

PAREKH

I. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: -
Independent Directors play an important role in the governance processes of the Board. They bring
with them their expertise and experience for fruitful discussions and deliberations at the Board. This
betters the decision-making process at the Board.
The Independent Directors have been appointed for a fixed term of 5 (five) years from their
respective dates of appointment with an option to retire from the office at any time during the term of
appointment. Their appointment has been approved by the Members of the Company. The
Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet with the criteria of independence laid down
under the Act, the Code and Listing Regulations.
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6(4) of the
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all the Independent Directors of
the Company have registered their names in the Data Bank maintained with the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs, Manesar (“lICA”), the authority notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
J. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company as on 315t March, 2025:

Mr. NIKETBHAI MAHENDRABHAI SHAH Managing Director

Mr. HITALKUMAR SHAH Whole-Time Director
Ms. HINISHA PATEL Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mr. PRAFULLBHAI MAKVANA Chief Financial Officer

K. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: -

In accordance with provisions of Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulation read with Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 the Independent Directors separately met on 06" of February, 2025,
without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and Management Personnel of the Company.
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At such meeting, the Independent Directors (i) reviewed the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole, (ii) reviewed the performance of Chairman of the Company
after taking into account views of Executives and Non-Executive Directors and (iii) assess the
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

L. ISSUANCE OF LETTER OF APPOINTMENT: -

The Independent Directors are given a formal appointment letter inter alia containing the term of

appointment, role, duties and responsibilities, time commitment, remuneration, insurance, code of

conduct, training and development, performance evaluation process, disclosure, confidentiality, etc.

M. BOARD’S ROLE: -

The Board’s role is to:

a. provide entrepreneurial leadership, set strategic objectives, and ensure that the necessary
financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives;

b. establish a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risks to be assessed and
managed, including safeguarding of shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets;

c. set the Company’s values and standards (including ethical standards), and ensure that
obligations to shareholders and other stakeholders are understood and met;

d. Consider sustainability issues, e.g. environmental, governance and social factors, as part of its
strategic formulations

e. review and approve the recommended remuneration framework and packages for the Board and
key management personnel;

f. review the performance of the Board, set the criteria for selection of directors and to nominate
directors for shareholders’ approval; and

g. Ensure that communications with shareholders are accurate, adequate and timely.

h. To assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has constituted various
Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The role and function of each committee is disclosed in subsequent sections in this report. While

these committees are delegated with responsibilities as provided in their Terms of Reference, the

decision-making powers have been delegated to the Board of Directors as a whole.

All Board Committees are constituted with clear Terms of Reference to assist the Board in

discharging its functions and responsibilities.

1. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: -

The Committees constituted by the Board focus on specific areas and take informed decisions

within the framework designed by the Board and make specific recommendations to the Board on

matters in their areas or purview.

All decisions and recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for information

or for approval, if required. To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the

Company, the Board has delegated particular matters to the Committees of the Board set up for the

purpose.

The Board has constituted Four (4) statutory committees as on 31t March 2025:
¢ Audit Committee (AC)
¢ Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

e Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC)
¢ Risk Management Committee (RMC)

The terms of reference of the Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. The

respective Chairman of the Committee informs the summary of discussions held in the Committee

Meetings to the Board.

The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are tabled at the respective Committee Meetings. The role

and composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial

year and the related attendance, are provided below.
A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a qualified and independent Audit Committee in line with the provisions

of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

is in due compliance of all the provisions stated therein. The Committee has full access to financial
information.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE: -

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as follows:

1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’'s Responsibility Statement to be included in
the Board'’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;

6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’'s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matter to the board;

16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17)To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

19) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20) Reviewing the Management letters/ letters of Internal Control weaknesses issued by Statutory
Auditors;

21) Review of Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

22) Review of Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

23) Review of appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor;

o
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24)Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in
the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever
is lower;
25) Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the company and its shareholders;
26) Review of the following statement of deviations:
a. Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to Stock Exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1);
b. Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7);
27)Approval of all Related Party Transactions and subsequent material modifications of
transactions of the company with related parties;
28) Review of the information provided by the company for approval of proposed Related Party
Transactions;
29) Review of the status of long-term (more than one year) or recurring Related Party Transactions
on an annual basis; and
30) Carrying out any other function as may be required in pursuance of the decision of the Board of
Directors of the Company or any provisions under the Companies Act, 2013 or SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, or any other
applicable laws.
ii. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE: -
As on 31st March, 2025, the Audit Committee is comprised of Four (4) Directors. All members of the
Audit Committee are financially literate having expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation,
Economics, Risk and International Finance. The composition of the Audit Committee is given below:

Name of the Director Category

Mr. Paresh Rameshchandra Parekh Chairman — Independent Director
Mrs. Sapnaben Hitalbhai Shah Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nihar Gaurang Sheth Non-Executive - Independent Director
Mr. Aditya Vikrambhai Patel Non-Executive - Independent Director

Mrs. HINISHA PATEL, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

iii. MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE: -
During the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 the Committee met Four (4) times on
11/05/2024, 14/08/2024, 24/10/2024 and 06/02/2025. The time elapsed between any two
consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days.
Name of the Director No. of meetings attended
*Mr. Shaileshkumar Ambalal Patel 3

*Mrs. Parulben Niketkumar Shah

*Mr. Sunil Vishnuprasad Purohit
*Mr. Amitkumar Chandrakantbhai Trivedi
Mr. Paresh Rameshchandra Parekh
Mrs. Sapnaben Hitalbhai Shah
Mr. Nihar Gaurang Sheth
Mr. Aditya Vikrambhai Patel 1
*Directors resigned/deceased from Board during the year under review and were not part of
Committee as on 31st March, 2025
All the Audit Committee Meetings are attended by Chief Financial Officer of the company as an
Invitee. Partner of Internal Auditors- M/s. BPA & Company also attended the audit committee
meetings as invitee.
The Committee relies on the expertise and knowledge of the Management and the Internal Auditor,
in carrying out its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee also considers taking professional
advice from external experts, as and when required.
The minutes of Audit Committee Meetings are placed in the next meeting of the Board.
Total fees for all services paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditors is given below:

(Rs. In Lakh)
| M/s. K.C.Parikh & Associates. | FY2024-25 |
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Audit Fees 1.80
Taxation Matters 0.15
Other Services 0.00
Total 1.95

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

The NRC of the Company functions according to its terms of reference, its objectives, composition,

meeting requirements, authority and power, responsibilities, reporting and evaluation functions in

accordance with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule Il of the

SEBI Listing Regulations.

i. TERMS OF REFERENCE: -

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) aims at establishing a formal and transparent

process for the appointment / re-appointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee is

responsible to:

The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia, includes:

1) ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of
Directors their appointment and removal;

2) Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management;

3) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of
the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

4)  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent director and the board of
directors;

5) To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;

6) Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, the
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks;

7) To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage;

8) To ensure that as per the prevailing HR policy of the Company there is an appropriate
induction program for newly appointed Key Managerial Personnel and new Senior
Management personnel;

9) To provide the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management personnel with reward
based fixed and incentive pay which is directly linked to their efforts, performance, dedication,
achievement and operations of the Company;

10) To assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities;

11) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties;

12) For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and
on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of
an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an
independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose
of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
c. consider the time commitments of the candidates;
13) Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors; and
14) Whether to extend or continue the terms of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent director.
ii. COMPOSITION & MEETINGS OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE: -

As on 318t March, 2025, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is comprised of three (3) Non-

Executive Independent Directors and One (1) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. The

Nomination and Remuneration Committee held Three (3) meetings during the relevant financial year

on 14/08/2024, 24/10/2024 and 03/01/2025.
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The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on 31t March, 2025 and the
details of meetings attended by its members are appearing hereinafter:

. No. of Meetings
Name of the Director Category attended
*Mr. Shaileshkumar Ambalal Patel Non-Executive - Independent Director 2
*Mr. Sunil Vishnuprasad Purohit Non-Executive - Independent Director 2
*Mr. Amitkumar Chandrakantbhai | Non-Executive - Independent Director 2
Trivedi
*Mrs. Parulben Niketkumar Shah Non-Executive — Non-Independent 2
Director
Mr. Paresh Rameshchandra Parekh | Non-Executive - Independent Director 1
Mrs. Sapnaben Hitalbhai Shah Non-Executive — Non-Independent 1
Director
Mr. Nihar Gaurang Sheth- Chairman | Non-Executive - Independent Director 1
Mr. Aditya Vikrambhai Patel Non-Executive - Independent Director 1

*Directors resigned/deceased from Board and were not part of the committee as on 315 March,
2025

i. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS &

INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: -
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has laid down criteria for evaluation of the
performance of the Board of Directors, Committees of the Board and individual directors
(Independent and Non-Independent Directors) Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Listing
Regulations, the NRC and the Board of Directors have carried out the Annual performance
evaluation of the Board of Directors, Committees of the Board and individual directors (Independent
and Non-Independent Directors) based on the criteria laid down by NRC.An exercise was carried
out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors and
the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee met the Directors individually to get an
overview of functioning of the Board and its constituents inter alia on the following broad criteria:
e attendance and acquaintance with business level of participation,

independence of judgement exercised by Independent Directors,

vision and strategy

Interpersonal relationship etc.

effective participation, domain knowledge.

iv. PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTION: -

During the current financial year 2024-25 there was no pecuniary relationship or transaction with
Non-Executive Directors of the company other than payment of Sitting Fees to Independent
Directors for attending Board Meetings

v. PAYMENT TO NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: -
Your company has paid sitting fees of Rs. 6.82 Lacs to its Non-Executive Directors.
vii REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: -
In FY 2024-25, the Company has paid Rs. 32 Lacs to its Executive Directors as Remuneration. The
remuneration paid is within the limits approved by the Shareholders.
Given below are details pertaining to payment of Managerial Remuneration for FY 2024-25:

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Remuneration paid for FY 2024-25
Gross Salary 32.00
Perquisites --
Total 32.00

The Company is paying remuneration to its Executive Directors in compliance with Section Il of Part
Il of Schedule V of the Companies, Act, 2013.
The Company does not have any Employee Share Option Scheme or Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme or any long-term incentive scheme.

C. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Board has constituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in line with the provisions of
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is
in due compliance of all the provisions stated therein.
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i. TERMS OF REFERENCE: -

1) To allot the Equity Shares of the Company, and to supervise and ensure;

2) To attend to requests from the shareholders for transfer / transmission of shares and all matters
incidental or related thereto;

3) To attend to matters relating dematerialization / re-materialization of shares / other securities
and all matters incidental or related thereto;

4) To advise the Board on matters incidental or relating to issue of Bonus Shares & Rights
Shares, etc.;

5) To consider and resolve grievances of the security holders of the Company, including
complaints related to the transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report and
non-receipt of declared dividends;

6) To review the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

7) To review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

8) To review various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Company;

9) To investigate complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of
shares or any other securities;

10) To attend to issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split / consolidation / renewal;

11) To attend to matters relating to compliance with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and other
statutory requirements concerning the interests of holders of shares and other securities; and

12) To carry out any other function as may be required in pursuance of the decision of the Board of
Directors of the Company or any provision under the Companies Act, 2013 or SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 or any other applicable law.

ii. COMPOSITION & MEETINGS OF SRC COMMITTEE: -

In compliance of provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 20 of the SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. As on

31st March, 2025, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is comprised of One (1) Non-

Executive Independent Director, One (1) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and Two (2)

Executive Directors. One (1) meeting of the SRC was held on 14/08/2024.

The composition of the SRC Committee as on 315t March, 2025 and the details of meetings

attended by its members are appearing hereinafter:

. No. of Meetings
Name of the Director Category attended

*Mrs. Parulben Shah Non-Executive - Director 1

Mr. Hital Shah- Member Executive Director 1

Mr. Niket Shah- Member Executive Director 1

*Mr. Shaileshkumar Ambalal Patel Non-Executive Independent Director 1

Mrs. Sapnaben Hitalbhai Shah- Non-Executive - Director 0
Chairman

Mr. Paresh Rameshchandra | Non-Executive Independent Director 0
Parekh

*Directors resigned from Board during the year and were not a part of SRC as on 315 March, 2025
During the year under review, Nil shareholders’ complaint was received and Nil was resolved. No
shareholders’ complaint was pending as on 31st March, 2025.
Mrs. HINISHA PATEL, Company Secretary of the company acts as a Compliance Officer for the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
iii. REDRESSAL OF INVESTOR GRIEVANCES:

The Company and its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent address the complaints and grievances
of its shareholders expeditiously and replies are sent usually within 15 days except in case of
dispute over facts or other legal impediments and procedural issues. The Company endeavors to
implement suggestions as and when received from the investors.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Risk Management Committee as per Regulation 21(5) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is
not applicable to the Company as the Company does not fall under top 1000 listed Companies on
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the basis of market capitalization. However, as a part of good corporate governance, your Company
has constituted a Risk Management Committee in compliance with Regulation 21(1) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

As per Regulation 17(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Company is required to lay down the procedures about the risk assessment and
minimization procedures.

The meeting of Risk Management Committee was held on 06" of February, 2025 during the year
under review.

i The Composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follow:

Name of Members Designation | Category of Director
Mr. Niket Shah Chairman Managing Director

Mr. Hital Shah Member Whole-Time Director
Mrs. Sapnaben Hitalbhai Shah | Member Non-Executive Director

ii. The Terms of Reference of the Risk Management Committee are broadly as follows:

1) To ensure that all the current and future material risk exposures of the Company are identified,
assessed, quantified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and managed i.e. to ensure adequate
systems for risk management;

2) To establish a framework for the Company’s risk management process and to ensure its
implementation;

3) To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever applicable, through the adoption of
best practices; and

4) To achieve business growth with financial stability.

The detailed terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee is available on the website of

the Company and can be downloaded from the weblink:

https://hilltonegases.com/pdf/codesandpolicies/Risk%20Management.pdf

2. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: -
The details of date, time and location of Annual General Meetings (AGM) held in last 3 years and
Special Resolutions passed are as under: -

Financial | Date & Time Venue Special — Resolutions passed
Year
2024-25 13.09.2024 Through Video | 1. Approval for Locking-in Shares of
at Conferencing at the Shareholders Holding More Than 5%
03:30 p.m. Registered office of of Equity Share Capital for a Period of
the Company One Year from the Date of Listing at
BSE Limited

2. To approve the re-appointment of Mr.
SHAILESHKUMAR AMBALAL PATEL
(DIN: 08453992), as an Independent
Director of the Company for a second
term of five consecutive years

3. To approve the re-appointment of Mr.
SUNIL VISHNUPRASAD PUROHIT
(DIN: 08454069), as an Independent
Director of the Company for a second
term of five consecutive years

2023-24 29.09.2023 Through Video | i. Re-Appointment of Niket M. Shah (Din:

at 03:30 p.m. | Conferencing at the | 00278968) as Managing Director and

Registered office of | Revision of Remuneration

the Company i. Re-Appointment of Mr. Hitalbhai

Mahendrabhai Shah (DIN: 00279026),

Whole-Time Director of The Company

and Revision of Remuneration.

iii. To approve the re-appointment of Mr.

Amitkumar Chandrakantbhai Trivedl

(DIN:  08204344), as an Independent
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Director of the Company for a second
term of five consecutive years

2022-23 29.09.2022 Through Video | Nil

at 03:30 p.m. | Conferencing at the
Registered office of
the Company.
Details of Special Resolution passed last year through postal ballot:

During the financial year ending on 31st March, 2025, No Special Resolutions were passed through
postal ballot.

Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:
Any Special Resolution, if required to be passed through Postal ballot during FY 2024-25 shall be
passed as per the procedure prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder.

3. OTHER DISCLOSURES: -

A. Disclosure of Material Transactions: - Related Party Transaction: -

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 during the financial year
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length price.

There were no materially significant transactions with related parties. during the financial year which
were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting
Standards (Ind-AS 24) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements in this Annual
Report. The Policy on Related Party Transaction has been placed on the Company’s website at
https://hilltonegases.com/pdf/codesandpolicies/Related%20Party%20Policy.pdf

B. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: -

In line with Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Act, the Company has
formulated a Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns about instance of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company’s Code of Conduct. The Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company
at

https://hilltonegases.com/pdf/codesandpolicies/Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf. During the year under
review, no complaint has been received under Vigil Mechanism /Whistle Blower Policy.

C. Compliance with Listing Requlations: -

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements under SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There was no Non-Compliance by the Company
and no penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or
any statutory authority on any matter related to the capital markets during the F.Y. 2024-25 except
as under:
i. Chairperson of the company was related to promoter of the company and half of the company’s
Board did not comprise of Independent Directors;
ii. Bombay Stock Exchange has levied Penalty of Rs. 29,500 for Non-Compliance with the
requirements pertaining to the composition of the Board during the year under review;
ii. The company has paid the levied penalty and the Non-Compliance is rectified by re-structuring
Board in its Board meeting dated 03rd January, 2025.

D. As required under the Listing Regulations, M/s HUSSAIN BOOTWALA & ASSOCIATES,
Practicing Company Secretaries, has certified that none of the directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. A Copy of the same is
attached at the end of the report.

E. Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) of Women at workplace: -

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Rules, 2013, the Company has framed a policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment
of women at workplace. The Status of complaints during FY 2024-25 is as under: -
Period Complaints
Opening as on 01.04.2024 Nil
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Received during — 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025 Nil
Disposed of during — 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025 Nil
Pending as at 31.03.2025 Nil

F. Disclosure of Material Subsidiaries: -
The company has no Subsidiaries, hence above clause is not applicable

G. Certificate on Corporate Governance: -
The Company has obtained a certificate from Practicing Company Secretaries, Hussain Bootwala &
Associates regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance prescribed under the
Listing agreement with Stock Exchanges which forms part of this report.

H. Shareholder’s Information: -
This Chapter read with the information given in the section titled General Shareholders’ information
constitutes the compliance report on Corporate Governance.

I. Code of Conduct: -
The Company has adopted a code of conduct for its Directors and Senior Management Personnel.
All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have agreed to follow compliance of
code of conduct. The code has been posted on the Company’s website at
https://hilltonegases.com/pdf/codesandpolicies/Code%200f%20Conduct.pdf.

J. Management Discussion and Analysis Report: -
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on Company’s financial and operational
performance, Industry trends etc. is presented as the Separate chapter in the Annual Report which
forms part of this report as Annexure A.

K. Insider Trading: -
The Company has in place “Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report Trading by Insider” and
accordingly Company Secretary of the Company closes window for trading in Equity Shares of the
Company at the end of every quarter in addition to specific event, if any to comply with said Insider
Trading Code.

L. Disclosures regarding Re-appointment of Directors: -
As per the Articles of Association of the Company, one third of the Directors are liable to retire by
rotation every year and if eligible, they offer themselves for re-election by the shareholders at the
General Meeting. There is no Alternate Director being appointed to the Board. The independent
Directors are not liable to retire by rotation.

M. Transfer of shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF): -
There was no amount which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

N. Discretionary Requirements: -
The table below summarizes compliance status of discretionary requirements of Part E of Schedule
Il of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

S. No. Particulars Status
1 Non-Executive Chairman’s office | The Company has a Executive Chairman.
Shareholders Rights The quarterly and year to date financial results are

published in the newspapers and are also posted on
the website of Bombay Stock Exchange and website of
the Company, the same are not being sent to the

shareholders.
3 Modified Opinion in Audit Report | The Audit Opinion for Financial Statements as on 31st
March, 2025 is unmodified.
4 Separate posts of Chairman and | There is no separate post of Chairman and Managing
MD or CEO Director.
5. Reporting of Internal Auditor The Internal Auditor of the company reports to the Audit

Committee at the Audit Committee Meeting held on
quarterly basis.

0. Means of Communication: -
i. Financials Results: -
The quarterly and year to date financial results (unaudited / audited) are published in one English
language and one Gujarati Language Newspaper.
ii. Website Display: -
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The Company’s policies, financial results, all information submitted to stock exchange, etc. are
displayed on the Company’s website https://hilltonegases.com/codes-and-policies.php.
4. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: -

calendar (tentative)

Annual General | 29" September at 3.00 p.m. through Video Conferencing /Other Audio
Meeting: Visual Means (VC).

Financial Year: April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025

The Onancial | Quarter ending June 30, 2025 - On August 13, 2025

Quarter ending September 30, 2025 - On or before November 14, 2025
Quarter ending December 31, 2025 — On or before February 14, 2026
Quarter ending and Year ending March 31, 2026- On or before May 30,
2026

Dates of Book | From September 21, 2025 to September 28, 2025 (both days inclusive) (for
Closure: the purpose of Annual General Meeting of the Company)

Dividend Payment | N.A.

Date:

Listing Details:

Equity Shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:
Bombay Stock Exchange
The Annual Listing Fees for the year 2025-26 has been paid to BSE

Stock Code:

BSE: 544308

Market Price Data

High, Low during each month in last Financial year i.e. April 1, 2024 to
March 31, 2025 at BSE Limited are as below

Month High Low

December, 2024 | 21.17 19.21
January, 2025 59.57 22.22
February, 2025 53.57 36.95
March, 2025 40.19 25.83

The Shares of the company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange as on
24" December, 2024. The Same were stagnant at Rs. 10/- before
24/12/2024 as they were listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange only.

Stock Performance

The comparison on the performance of the Company’s share price (closing)
vis-a-vis the BSE Sensex (closing) during the year 2024-2025 is as under:

Close Price Close Price

75000

ISIN Number:

INE168C01013

CIN:

L72200GJ1993PLC020620

Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent:

Mcs Share Transfer Agent Limited

101, Shatdal complex, Opp Bata Show Room,
Ashram Road,Ahmedabad-380009
Phone—(079)26580461/62/63,

Email: mcsstaahmd@gmail.com

Shareholding &
Category-wise
Distribution:

Share Transfer | Mcs Share Transfer Agent Limited, is Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of
System: the Company. The Share Transfer and Share Dematerialization is
processed by Link Intime India Private Limited, Ahmedabad. The transfer of
shares in Depository mode need not be approved by the Company. The
Physical transfers of shares are approved by Share Transfer Committee.
Distribution of | Refer Table B
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Dematerialization of
shares and liquidity:

As on 31t March, 2025, 84.38% of the paid-up share capital (face value of
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) is held in Demat form with NSDL and
CDSL.

Mode No. of Equity | % to Total Share
Shares Capital

Physical 17,07,100 15.62
Electronic
NSDL 58,60,404 53.61
CDSL 33,63,296 30.77
Total 1,09,30,800 100.00

Outstanding GDR /| NIL

ADR / Warrants or

any Convertible

Instruments and

their likely impact on

Equity:

Commodity price | NIL

risk or  foreign
exchange risk and
hedging activities:

Plant Locations:

Plot No 54, 71, 78, 81, Siddhivinayak Estate, Santej- Vadsar Rd, Vill:
Santej,Tal.: Kalol Dist.: Gandhinagar- 382721.

Address for
Correspondence:

All enquiries, clarification and correspondence should be addressed to the
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer: Mrs. HINISHA PATEL-
Company Secretary

B/4, K B Complex, Dairy Road, Mehsana, Guijarat, India, 384002

M: +91 98250 70110 / +91 9825070680

E-mail: secretarial.hilltone@gmail.com

Credit Ratings Nil
TABLE A
Distribution of Shareholding: 31.03.2025: -
Category Shareholders Total Shares of Rs.10/- each
Number Percent Number Percent
1-500 937 62.93 2,95,638 2.70
501-1000 343 23.04 3,17,873 2.91
1001-2000 58 3.90 89,496 0.82
2001-3000 30 2.01 81,709 0.75
3001- 4000 12 0.81 46,100 0.42
4001- 5000 14 0.94 66,242 0.61
5001-10000 24 1.61 1,76,900 1.62
10001- & ABOVE 71 4.76 98,56,842 90.17
Total 1489 100 1,09,30,800 100
TABLE B
Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2025: -
Sr. Category No. of Total Value %
No. Shares (Rs)
I Promoters Shareholding:
Promoters and Promoter Group 14,03,500 1,40,35,000 | 12.84
I Public Shareholding:
1 Body Corporate - LLP 3,70,255 3,70,255 | 3.39
2 Clearing Members - -
3. Hindu Undivided Family - -
4 Non-Resident Indians 12,50,911 1,25,09,110 | 11.44
S. Other Bodies Corporate - -

54| Page




C Hilltone Software
v & Gases Limited
6.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Date: 01/09/2025
Place: Mehsana
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Managing Director
DIN: 00278968

Executive Director
DIN: 00279026

Individuals 79,06,134 7,90,61,340 | 72.33
TOTAL : 1,09,30,800 10,93,08,000 | 100.00
For and on behalf of the Board
NIKET M. SHAH HITAL M. SHAH
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED

B/4, KB COMPLEX, DAIRY ROAD,

MEHSANA 384002

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance of Hilltone Software
And Gases Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 318, 2025 as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and other applicable regulations
of Chapter IV pertaining to Corporate Governance and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 [collectively referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations”].

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of SEBI Listing Regulations

2. The compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management of the Company, including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant
supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of
the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations.

Our Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by
the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with the Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company.

5. We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Corporate
Governance Certificate and the Guidance Manual on Quality of Audit & Attestation Services
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”).

Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and the representation made by the directors and the management, we hereby certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-
mentioned SEBI Listing Regulations.

7. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use

8. The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose
to enable the Company to comply with the requirement of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and it
should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept
or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

Place : AHMEDABAD HUSSAIN BOOTWALA & ASSOCIATES
Date : 01/09/2025 FRN: S2022GJ854400

HUSSAIN BOOTWALA
ACS No: 49591

C.P. No: 23980

PRC: 3936/2023

UDIN: A049591G001134246
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(refer Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

To,

The Members,

HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED

B/4, KB COMPLEX, DAIRY ROAD,

MEHSANA 384002

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED having CIN L72200GJ1993PLC020620
and having registered office at B/4, K B COMPLEX, DAIRY ROAD, MEHSANA, Gujarat, India,
384002 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-
C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary
and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below as on 31st March, 2025 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory
Authority.

SR. Name of Director DIN Date of
NO. appointment
in Company
1 HITALKUMAR SHAH 00279026 08/11/1993
2 NIKETBHAI MAHENDRABHAI SHAH 00278968 08/11/1993
3 SAPNABEN HITALBHAI SHAH 08615859 14/11/2019
4 ADITYA VIKRAMBHAI PATEL 09121052 03/01/2025
5 NIHAR GAURANG SHETH 10308024 03/01/2025
6 PARESH RAMESHCHANDRA PAREKH 10895389 03/01/2025

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Place : AHMEDABAD
Date : 01/09/2025

HUSSAIN BOOTWALA & ASSOCIATES
FRN: S2022GJ854400

HUSSAIN BOOTWALA
ACS No: 49591
C.P. No: 23980
PRC: 3936/2023
UDIN: A049591G001134191
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ANNEXURE C

FORM AOC-2

FORM AOC-2

A statement in Form AOC-2 is given below:-

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: No such
transactions were entered during the financial year 2024-25.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Rs. In Lacs
Name(s) of Nature of Duration of | Salientterms | Date(s) of | Amount
the related | transactions the of the approval paid as
party and transactions | contracts or by the advances,
nature of arrangements | Board, if if any:
relationship or any:
transactions
including the
value, if any:
Dhanlaxmi Sales Yearly Rs. 5.00 11/05/2024 --
Distributors
Enterprises
having
Significant
Influence

On behalf of the Board of Director

HITAL M. SHAH
(Executive Director)
DIN: 00279026

NIKET M. SHAH
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00278968

Date: 01/09/2025
Place: Mehsana
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ANNEXURE -D
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KMPs AND EMPLOYEES
Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014
The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median employees’ remuneration for
the financial year:

Sr. Name Designation Ratio
1 Niket M. Shah Managing Director 8.32
2 Hital M. Shah Whole time Director 8.32

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Sr. Name Designation Ratio
1 Niket M. Shah Managing Director 33.33
Hital M. Shah Whole time Director 33.33

3 HINISHA PATEL Company Secretary Nil

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial
year 2024-25: 8.32%

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31%t March
2025: 24 Employees

e) Average increase in the salaries of the employees and managerial remuneration:
The managerial remuneration has increased due to upcoming projects and increase in work
load of Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby affirmed that remuneration of all the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company are as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 01/09/2025 NIKET M. SHAH HITAL M. SHAH
Place: Mehsana (Managing Director) (Executive Director)
DIN: 00278968 DIN: 00279026
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ANNEXURE E

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION
To,
Board of Directors
Hilltone Software and Gases Limited
As required under the Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations) read with Schedule Il part B of
the Listing Regulations, we hereby certify that;

1. We have reviewed the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account, its schedule and notes
to the accounts and cash flow statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that may be misleading;

b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. We also certify that based on our knowledge and information provided to us, there are no
transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or
violate the Company’s Code of Conduct.

3. We accept the responsibilities for establishing and maintaining internal controls for
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems
of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which we are aware and the steps taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
a) Significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in notes to the financial statements; and

c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over financial reporting.

Date: 01/09/2025 Niket M. Shah Prafullbhai R Makvana
Place: Mehsana Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00278968)
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ANNEXURE F
Form No. MR-3
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended on 315t March, 2025
To,
The Members,
HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED
B/4, KB COMPLEX,
DAIRY ROAD, MEHSANA 384002
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED.
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED (name of the
company’s) books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March, 2025 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:
| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended on 31t March, 2025, according to the provisions of:
i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with

client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

However, it has been found that there were no instances requiring compliance with the provisions of
the laws indicated at point (d), (e), (9), (h) of para (v) mentioned hereinabove during the period under
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review. Further, there were no instances of Foreign Direct Investment or External Commercial
Borrowings.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
i.  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange, i.e. Calcutta
Stock Exchange and the SEBI(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (as amended);
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except as below:
i. Chairperson of the company was related to promoter of the company and half of the
company’s Board did not comprise of Independent Directors;
ii. Bombay Stock Exchange has levied Penalty of Rs. 29,500 for Non-Compliance with the
requirements pertaining to the composition of the Board during the year under review;
iii. The company has paid the levied penalty and the Non-Compliance is rectified by re-
structuring Board in its Board meeting dated 03rd January, 2025.
| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.
Majority decision at the Board Meetings as represented by the management were carried out
unanimously whereas, as informed, there is a system of capturing the views of dissenting members’
and recording the same as part of the minutes, wherever required.
| further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the company we are
of opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.
| further report that during the audit period there was no specific event/action having a major bearing
on the company’s affairs
Place : AHMEDABAD HUSSAIN BOOTWALA & ASSOCIATES
Date : 01/09/2025 FRN: S2022GJ854400

HUSSAIN BOOTWALA
ACS No: 49591
C.P. No: 23980
PRC: 3936/2023
UDIN: A049591G001134125

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report
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To,

ANNEXURE-A

The Members
HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED
B/4, KB COMPLEX,

DAIRY

Sir,

ROAD, MEHSANA384002

Sub: Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on 315t March, 2025

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

2.

Place :

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on our audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the company.

AHMEDABAD HUSSAIN BOOTWALA & ASSOCIATES

Date : 01/09/2025 FRN: S2022GJ854400
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ANNEXURE G

PARTICULARS REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988.
A.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a. Energy conservation measures:

The Company is making continuous efforts for the conservation of energy through

improved operational methods and better plant utilization.
b. Additional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of

consumption of energy:
We have made investment in energy saving equipments during the year. We are

anticipating substantial savings in energy cost in coming years.

c. Impact of measures (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and
consequent impact on the cost of production of goods:
Consumption of energy has been optimised to the extent possible.

d. Total energy consumption per unit of production.

2024-25 2023-24
Electricity Purchased

Units Kwh 65022 50967
Total amount Rs. 5,69,087 4.81,427
Rate / Unit Rs. 8.75 9.44

B TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

1. Research and Development (R & D):

(a) Specific area in which R & D carried out by the Company:
The Company employs indigenous technology and continuous efforts are made for
improvement in technical process and energy saving. The Company also is continuously
working towards product development and achieving higher turnover in such a way that
the bottlenecks in the production process is taken care of.

(b) Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D:
By addition of the new product the company is trying to improve presence in markets.
The company will be also in a position to achieve higher production by reducing the
impact of production mismatch with new product development.

(c) Future plan of action:
The Company will continue to work towards product development and cost cutting
Measures to achieve higher efficiency.

(d) Expenditure on R & D:

There is no specific/separate expenditure incurred for the R & D during the year under

review. The efforts for R & D are part of every productive activity of the Company.

2. Technology Absorption, Adaption & Innovation

(a) Efforts made:
The Company has in house technical expertise and no foreign / imported technology is

used. It is constant endeavour of the Company to absorb new product / process of
manufacturing and continue to innovate new products keeping in mind changing
demands of the customers. During the year under review Company focussed on
developing a product mix which made best use of the available production capacity and
reduced the impact of production bottlenecks.

(b) Benefits derived as a result of above efforts:
The Company is now confident of achieving higher production and would be in a position

to achieve higher efficiency improving overall working of the Company.
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Foreign Exchange Earned | 18,16,000 Rs. -
Foreign Exchange Used 24,17,150 Rs. 70000 USD

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 01/09/2025 NIKET M. SHAH HITAL M. SHAH

Place: Mehsana (Managing Director) (Executive Director)
DIN: 00278968 DIN: 00279026
ANNEXURE - H

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (LODR), 2015

| do hereby declare that pursuant to Schedule V (D) read with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing
Regulations, all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company
have affirmed compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for the financial year ended
March 31st, 2025.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

NIKET M. SHAH
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00278968

Date: 01/09/2025
Place: Mehsana
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HILLTONE
SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at 315t March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS”) and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March 2025, and its losses, other comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing specified (SAs) under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in your audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

How our Audit addressed the Key Audit
Matters

Revenue Recognition:

The Company’s revenue principally
comprises sale of gases. The revenue from
sale of goods is recognized in accordance
with the accounting principles prescribed
under Ind AS 115, “Revenue Recognition”

Our audit procedures on
recognition included the following:
» Testing the operating effectiveness of
Company’s controls around revenue
recognition.

+ Assessing the Company’s accounting

revenue

and is measured at the transaction price | policy for revenue recognition in
excluding taxes or duties collected on | accordance with Ind AS 115 “Revenue
behalf of government authorities and is | Recognition”.
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recognized at the time when control of
promised goods transferred to customers.
The control in respect of sale of goods is
generally transferred when the products
are delivered to customers in accordance

+ Selecting samples of revenue
transactions during the year and inspecting
underlying documents which included
invoices, shipping documents/ customers’
acceptance, as applicable, to determine

with the terms of contract with customers. that the revenue is recognized in
accordance with the agreed terms.

» Testing on a sample basis credit notes
issued to customers.

Based on the above procedures performed,
we did not identify any material exceptions

in revenue recognition of sale of goods.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion
and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’'s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the Standalone financial statement and our audit reports thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes of equity of the Company in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rues 2015, as amended
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management and Board of Directors
are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
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level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the Statement of Cash Flows and changes in equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31t March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position
i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses
iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
iv.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) except for the entities consolidated
with the company, or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) except for the entities consolidated with the company or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in

contravention of the provision of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company have
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except in respect of Haryana
branch of company. Further, the audit trail facility has been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in software except in
respect of Haryana branch of company. Further, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail features being
tampered with during the year. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved
by the Company as per the statutory requirement for record retention.
2. With respect to the matters to be included in Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given
to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For, K. C. Parikh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No. 107550W

CA. Kishor C. Parikh

Date: 29/05/2025 Partner
Place: Ahmedabad M.No.: 038060
UDIN: 25038060BMGORS9517
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Annexure — A to Independent Auditor's Report on Standalone Financial Statements
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED of
even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HILLTONE
SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED (‘the Company’), as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the period ended
and as on that date.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance
Note’)..
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act and the Guidance Note,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of Internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
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preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) Pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) Provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) Provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For, K. C. Parikh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 107550W

CA. Kishor C. Parikh

Date : 29/05/2025 Partner
Place : Ahmedabad M.No.: 038060
UDIN: 25038060BMGORS9517
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone
Financial Statements of HILLTONE SOFTWARE AND GASES LIMITED

i)

i)

ii)

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
b) According to the information and explanations furnished to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular program of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance
with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified by
the management during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
c¢) according to information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
we report that, the title deeds comprising of the immovable properties of land and
buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet
date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on
lease and disclosed as ROU Assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements are
in the name of the company.
d) According to the information and explanations furnished to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly reporting
under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
e) According to information and explanations furnished to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder and therefore the question
of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
the standalone financial statements does not arise.
a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been
physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as
followed by management were appropriate.
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limit during the year. Accordingly reporting under Clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
a) During the year the company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of
loans to companies. However, in case of loans given in previous year, interest charged as
per mutual loan arrangement letter executed between parties, were not received during
the year. Such consistent non receipt of interest is considered as part of accumulated loan
amount and hence treated as fresh loans granted during the year for the purpose of
reporting under this Clause. Accordingly, the company has granted fresh loans (interest
charged, accrued and due but not received) amounting to Rs. 37.13 Lakhs during the year.

Loans Given

Aggregate amount given during the year

- Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/ Associates Nil

- Others 37.13 Lakhs
Balance outstanding as at Balance sheet date

- Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/ Associates Nil

- Others 540.68 Lakhs

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions on which loans have been
given by the company are not prejudicial to the interest of the company. Further the said loans
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have been granted within the limits given in section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Balance
Outstanding as at the balance sheet date is Rs.540.68 Lakhs.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in the case of loans given, there are no stipulated terms and
conditions for repayment of principal and such loans are repayable on demand by the
company. Further, as per mutual loan arrangement letter executed between parties in respect
of each loans, interest is payable on a monthly basis. However, in the following cases, interest
accrued and due is not received on monthly basis:

Name of the entity Total Amount Charged as
Interest during the year

Harsha R. Javeri 5.67 Lakhs

Leading L_ea_smg Finance and Investment 16.08 Lakhs

Company Limited

Jeevan Jyoti Vanijya Limited 1.64 Lakhs

Madhuraj Industrial Gases Private Limited 13.74 Lakhs

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us in the case of loans given, in absence of stipulated terms and
conditions in respect of repayment of principal, we are unable to comment as to whether the
any amount of loans given is overdue for more than 90 days. However, the management has
represented us that they are following up with the respective entities for recovery of
outstanding interest amount.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no loan was granted to the same party which has
fallen due during the year and were renewed / exetended. Further no fresh loans were granted
to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans.

f) Company has granted advances in nature of loans without specifying the scheduled
repayment of principal and were repayable on demand as mentioned below:

Particular All Parties Related Parties

Aggregate advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on demand and provided without

specifying any terms or period of repayment 540.68 Lakhs -
Percentage of Advances in nature of Loans to | 100% -
total Loans

iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company has not granted any loans under section 185.
Further the company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans.

V) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,
2013.

vi) The provisions of section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to

maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the company.

vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us, in our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs

Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods and Services Tax, and other material

statutory dues, in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax, sales
tax, excise duty, custom duty and Goods and Services Tax which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.
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viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

a) According to the information and explanation and as verified from books of accounts,
the company has not defaulted in repayment in loan or interest thereon to any lender.
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statement of the Company, as at 31 March 2025, we report
that no funds raised on short term basis of have been used for long term purposes

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.
f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined
under the Act).

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company the company has made preferential
allotment of equity shares. The company has utilized the funds so raised for the
purposes for which they were raised except following:

Nature of
Securities funds were raised as at

Amount unutilized for

Purpose for the purpose for which

which funds Remarks

were raised 31-03-2025

Preferential
allotment of | Working capital Said funds has been
Equity shares | and general
(Rs.
Lakhs raised in | purpose interest @ 9% p.a
F.Y. 2023-24)

granted as loans to
831.66 | corporate ol others at simple rate of

xi) a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instances of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor we have
been informed of such case by the management.

b)

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act, has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended from time to time) with the Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this report. As per information and explanations given by the management
and audit committee, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year. Accordingly reporting under paragraph xi (c) of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

75| Page



‘ Hilltone Software
v & Gases Limited
ANNEXURE B- CARO

xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act,
whereever and to the exent applicable, and the details of the related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

xiv)  (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in
our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to
its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the books and records of the Company:

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company is not a NBFC, hence reporting under this clause is not required.

(c) The Company is not a NBFC, hence reporting under this clause is not required.

(d) The Company is not a CIC, hence reporting under this clause is not required

xvii) Based on the examination of the books of accounts, we report that the Company has not

incurred cash losses in the current financial year covered by my audit or in the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) (a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, company
is not fulfilling any of the conditions mentioned under section 135(1) of the Act, hence
reporting under this clause is not required
(b)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, company
is not fulfilling any of the conditions mentioned under section 135(1) of the Act, hence
reporting under this clause is not required.

For, K. C. Parikh and Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN.: 107550W

CA Kishor C. Parikh

Partner
M. No.: 038060 Date: 29/05/2025
UDIN: 25038060BMGORS9517 Place: Ahmedabad
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HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Rs in lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars Notes | arch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 549.22 398.97
Capital work-in-progress 3 142.23 -
Financial Assets
Investment 4 - 2.30
Loans 5 413.58 584.15
Other financial assets 6 235.09 334.19
Deferred tax assets 7 - 6.28
Non-current tax assets 16 - -
Other non-current assets 8 19.89 -
1,360.02 1,325.89
I.Current assets
Inventories 9 59.39 40.98
Financial Assets
Investment -
Trade receivables 10 109.68 152.31
Cash and cash equivalents 1 158.35 47.31
Current tax Asset 12 5.37 -
Other current assets 8 57.46 17.96
390.24 258.57
Total Assets 1,750.26 1,584.46
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 1,093.08 1,093.08
Other equity 14 273.08 288.77
1,366.17 1,381.85
LIABILITIES
I. Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15 28.41 40.33
Lease Liabilities 16 105.76 -
Other Finanacial Liability 17 28.46 37.94
Provisions 18 21.49 -
Deferred tax liabilities 7 21.71 -
Other non-current liabilities 19 8.40 -
214.23 78.27
I.Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15 11.82 39.33
Lease Liabilities 16 22.69 -
Trade payables 20 -
Total outstanding dues of -
a) Micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
b) Credlltors other than micro enterprises and small 96.09 70.38
enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities 19 32.91 -
Provisions 18 6.35 5.32
Current tax liabilities 21 - 0.31
169.86 124.34
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,750.26 1,584.46

Notes forming part of financial statements (including significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-43)

In terms of our report of even date attached

UDIN: 25038060BMGORS9517
FOR, K.C Parikh & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 107550W

Kishor C. Parikh
Partner

Membership No.: 038060
Place: Santej

Date: 29/05/2025

77| Page

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

NIKET M. SHAH
Managing Director
DIN:00278968

HITAL M. SHAH
Executive Director
DIN:00279026

HINISHA PATEL PRAFULL MAKVANA
Company Secretary Chief Financial officer
ACS No. A59842




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 22 752.49 684.53
Other income 23 71.20 48.24
Total Income [I] 823.70 732.76
Expenses
Purchase of Stock in trade 24 561.00 448.08
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and
work-in-progress 25 -18.40 -8.16
Employee benefits expense 26 110.67 67.33
Finance costs 27 10.68 11.85
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 16.03 13.59
Other Expenses 29 119.97 137.77
Total expenses [Il] 799.94 670.46
Profit before tax [llI=I-11] 23.75 62.30
Tax expense
Current tax 11.45 15.05
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - -
Deferred tax 27.99 -3.38
Total tax expense [IV] 39.45 11.67
Profit for the year [V=IlI-IV] [A] -15.70 50.64
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will be classified to profit | loss - -
b) tems that will not to be reclassified to profit | loss
i) Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit
plans - -
ii) Net gain / (loss) on FVOCI Equity instruments -
iii) Income tax effect on above - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
B=i+ii - -
'[I'otal c]omprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A+B] -15.70 50.64
Earning per equity share of Rs.10/- each (Amount in Rs.)
Basic -0.14 0.63
Diluted -0.14 0.63
Notes forming part of financial statements (including significant
accounting policies) (Notes 1-43)

In terms of our report of even date attached

FOR, K.C Parikh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 107550W

Kishor C. Parikh
Partner

Membership No.: 038060

Place: Santej
Date: 29/05/2025
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NIKET M. SHAH
Managing Director
DIN:00278968

HINISHA PATEL
Company Secretary
ACS No. A59842

HITAL M. SHAH
Executive Director
DIN:00279026

PRAFULL MAKVANA
Chief Financial officer
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement For the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs in lakhs)
As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATION ACTIVITIES :
Profit before tax 23.75 62.30
Non Cash Expenses / Incomes :- 47.94 13.59
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 16.03 13.59
Gain on sale of Fixed Assets (0.05) -
Provision for Doubtful debts 6.66 -
Provision for Gratuity 25.30 -
Considered Under Different Head :- (54.33) (35.21)
Interest paid 10.68 11.85
Interest income (65.01) (47.06)
Changes in Working Capital 75.51 (733.49)
Trade receivables 35.97 9.66
Inventory (18.41) (8.16)
Other current assets (39.50) (583.83)
Trade payables 16.71 6.96
Provision (2.78)
Short term borrowing (27.51) (14.32)
Other financial liabilities (9.49) (1.87)
Deposit from vendors received 6.03
Other non-current assets (19.89) (147.95)
Other non-current liabilities 8.40 -
Other current liabilities 32.91 -
Other non-current financial assets 99.10 -
Direct taxes paid (net) (17.13) (25.57)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 75.74 (718.38)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Interest received 65.01 47.06
Purchase of tangible and intagible assets including CWIP (182.04) (128.69)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.03 -
Sale of Investment 2.30 -
Loans and Advances 170.57 -
NET CASH GENERATED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 57.87 (81.63)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Interest paid (10.68) (11.85)
Repayment of Loan liability (11.91) 11.85
Issuance of Share capital - 810.04
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (22.60) 810.05
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 111.02 10.03
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 47.31 37.28
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 158.33 47.31
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 93.82 32.95
Cheques in Hand - 6.20
Balance with banks 64.52 8.17
Fixed deposits with bank (maturity within 12 months) - -
TOTAL 158.35 47.31

Accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financials
As per our report of even date

FOR, K.C Parikh & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 107550W

Kishor C. Parikh
Partner

Membership No.: 038060
Place: Santej

Date: 29/05/2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

NIKET M. SHAH
Managing Director
DIN:00278968

HINISHA PATEL
Company Secretary
ACS No. A59842

HITAL M. SHAH
Executive Director
DIN:00279026

PRAFULL MAKVANA
Chief Financial officer



a)

b)

a HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

v Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Background

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES IIMITED is a public company limited by shares incorporated in India. Its registered office is located at B/4, K
B COMPLEX, DAIRY ROAD, MEHSANA, Gujarat, India, 384002

Hilltone Software and Gases Limited (“the company”) is engaged in the business of trading of Industrial as well as Medical Oxygen gase and
other allied gases as well as Software business.

Significant accounting policies

This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Company in preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation
i) Statement of Compliance:

The Financial Statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the
Act, as amended.

ii) Historical cost convention:

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value.

iii) The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis.

iv) The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the Standalone Financial Statements. All assets and liabilities
have been classified as current or non-current as per the normal operating cycle of the Company and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. (Incase of fixed deposit, marked as lien for Overdraft facility, is considered as non current asset
though it is having maturity date below 12 months)

v) Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and
amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company
has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the
impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes
in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on
or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statement.

vi) The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs. Any discrepancies in
any table between totals and sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding off.

Foreign currency transactions:
i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates (‘functional currency’). The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Indian currency
(%), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

ii) Transactions and balances:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gain/(loss) resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss except that they are
deferred in other equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges. All other foreign exchange gain/(loss) presented in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss are on a net basis within other income/(expense).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value that are denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain/(loss). Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not revalued.
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Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from contracts with customers:

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and supply of industrial and medical gases, while also offering digital software solutions.

Revenue is recognized by when control of the goods is transferred to the customer. A receivable is recognized at the point of delivery, as this
represents the moment when the right to consideration becomes unconditional, with only the passage of time remaining before payment is due.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

ii) Other Income:

Interest Income from financial assets is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that dicounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instruments (for example, prepayment, extention, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established; it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Lease rental income is recognized on accrual basis.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based
on the applicable income tax rates. Deferred tax reflects changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit | (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Standalone Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

The Company considers reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making the
assessment of deferred tax liabilities and realisability of deferred tax assets. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, the Management believes that the Company will
realise the benefits of those deductible differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Leases
As a lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and iii) the Company has
the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is lessee, except for short-term leases (leases with a term of twelve months or less), leases of low value assets and,
for contract where the lessee and lessor has right to terminate a lease without permission from the other party with no more than an
insignificant penalty. The lease expense of such short-term leases, low value assets leases and cancellable leases, are recognised as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

At commencement date, lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid during non-cancellable period of the
contract, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. The right-of-use assets is initially recognised at the amount of the initial
measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before commencement date less any lease incentives received
and any initial direct costs.

Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using effective interest rate method) and
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The right-of-use asset and lease liability are also adjusted to reflect any
lease modifications or revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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Current / non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification. An asset is treated as current
when it is:

a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when it is:
a) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Fixed Deposits held under lien against Bank Overdraft has been considered as non current investment.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of asset or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance expenses are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred. Gains or
losses arising on retirement or disposal of assets are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as property, plant and equipment if they are held for use in the

production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one
period.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Standalone Balance Sheet are disclosed as 'Capital work-
in-progress’.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of expected useful life and the expected residual value of
the assets at the end of its useful life. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events,
which may impact their life.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method from the date of acquisition/installation till the date the assets are sold or
disposed of:

Particulars Useful life of assets (in Years)
Air conditioner 10

Camera 10

Furniture & fixtures 10

Computer 3

Computer Software 10

Office equipments 5

Vehicles 8

Factory Building 30

Plant and Equipment 25

The Company, based on technical evaluation carried out by internal technical experts, believes that the useful lives as given above best
represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets.The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount of the asset is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured, on initial recognition, at cost. Following the initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. The Company
bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses on
assets no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised when the right to consideration becomes unconditional. These assets are held at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method where applicable, less provision for impairment based on expected credit loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months from the reporting date. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to effect the
sale.

Investments and other financial assets
Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)
ii) Those measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments:

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial asset is recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial asset is recognised
initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asset carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the Company for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Measured at amortised cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method less impairment, if any, the
amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair
value movements are recognised in the OCI. Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain | (loss) previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to other income in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as other income in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other than subsidiary companies and associate company at fair
value. The Company has elected to present fair value gains and losses on such equity investments in other comprehensive income and there is
no subsequent reclassification of these fair value gains and losses to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Derecognition:

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, the asset
expires or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised through the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss or other
comprehensive income as applicable. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the
financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities:

i) Classification as debt or equity:

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

i) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are
initially measured at the fair value.

iii) Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv) Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Standalone Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are removed from the Standalone Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income | (expense).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowings Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Provisions & contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. These are reviewed at each year end and
reflect the best current estimate. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are number of similar obligations, the likelyhood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is reconized even if the likelyhood an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at present value of best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present obligations at the end of reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax rate that reflacts current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligations arising from past event, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurance or non- occurance of one of more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligations that
arrises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of
amount can not be made.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution to provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company's liabilities towards gratuity payable to its employees are determined using the Acturial Valuation Report which is obtained in
accordance with Ind AS 19

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
a) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

b) Net interest expense or income.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS is the net profit for the period and any
attributable tax thereto for the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Critical estimates and judgements

Preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires use of accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions, which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Standalone Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Financial Statements. This Note provides an overview of the areas that
involves a higher degree of judgements or complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the Standalone Financial
Statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
i) Estimation for income tax: Note 1 (d)

ii) Estimation of useful life of tangible assets: Note 1 (i)
iii) Estimation of provision for inventories: Note 1 (n)

iv) Estimation of defined benefit obligations: Note 1 (u)
v) Fair value measurements: Note 30

The Income tax department had carried out a search operations at the office/factory premises of the Company on 14th May, 2025. No assets
were seized or impounded. Income tax department is yet to frame the assessments of the search period. The Company does not expect any
additional liability on account of search proceedings.

85| Page



)

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended on March 31, 2025

A. Equity share capital (Rs in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 400.03
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 693.05
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,093.08
Balance as at April 1, 2024 1,093.08
Changes in Equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,093.08

B. Other equity

(Rs in lakhs)
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company Total
. Reserve and Surplus
Particulars - -
Capital Other Secu.rlty Retained Earnings
Reserve Reserves premium
Balance as at April 1, 2023 9.66 128.55 116.99 -17.07 238.14
Profit for the year 50.64
Provided For
Utilisation for Bonus Issue
Iltems of OCI, net of tax
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans
Net gain / (loss) on Equity instruments carried at
fair value through OCI
Balance transfer on derecognition of Equity
Instruments carried at fair value through OCI
(See note below)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 9.66 128.55 116.99 33.56 288.77
Balance as at April 1, 2024 9.66 128.55 116.99 33.56 288.77
Profit for the year -15.70 -15.70
Provided for -
Items of OCI, net of tax -
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans -
Net gain / (loss) on Equity instruments carried at
fair value through OCI -
Balance transfer on derecognition of Equity
Instruments carried at fair value through OCI
(See note below) -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 9.66 128.55 116.99 17.86 273.08

Note: Other Reserves is created pursuant to first time adoption of Ind AS

In terms of our report of even date attached

FOR, K

.C Parikh & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 107550W

Kishor C. Parikh

Partner

Membership No.: 038060

Place: Santej
Date: 29/05/2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

NIKET M. SHAH

Managing Director
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HINISHA PATEL

Company Secretary

ACS No. A59842

HITAL M. SHAH

Executive Director

DIN:00279026

PRAFULL MAKVANA
Chief Financial officer
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3.1. ROU Assets

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Particulars

ROU Assets

Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2023
Additions

Disposal

As at March 31, 2024
As at April 1, 2024
Additions

Disposal

As at March 31, 2025
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023
Depreciation for the year
Disposal

As at March 31, 2024
As at April 1, 2024
Depreciation for the year
Disposal

As at March 31, 2025
As at March 31, 2025

137.19

137.19

11.43

11.43

125.76

As at March 31, 2024

As at April 1, 2023

3.2 Capital Work-In-Progress

Balance as at 1 April 2023

Additions

Transferred to Property Plant & Equipment -

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Additions

Transferred to Property Plant & Equipment -

Balance as at 31 March 2025

CWIP ageing

Particulars

Amount in Capital work in progress as on March 31, 2025

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Plant & Machinery

112.71

112.71

Computer & accessories

1.22

1.22

Furniture & fixtures

222

2.22

Lease Liability

6.27

6.27

Depreciation on ROU Asset

11.43

11.43

Others (Software)

8.38

8.38

Total Projects in progress

142.23

142.23
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° HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

v Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 4 : Non-Current Investment

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

A. Investment in Others, at cost:-
1) Investment in Equity Insturment - Unquoted, fully paid up

The Mehsana Urban Co Op Bank Lid - 2.30
TOTAL - 2.30
Particulars

Quoted - -
Unquoted - 2.30

Note 5 : Loans

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024
[Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated]
Financial assets-Current
Loans to Employees (Including Rs. 6.78 Lakhs of CFO) 12.90 8.1
Loans to Others 400.68 576.04
413.58 584.15
Details about Loans to Others
Loans Given for their Business Puposes at interest rate of 9% p.a:
-Harsha R Jhaveri 78.10 72.43
-Jeevan Jyoti Vanijya Ltd 96.45 293.77
-Leading Leasing Finance And Investment Company Ltd 225.20 209.12

Note 6 : Other Financial Asset

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024
[Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated]
Non-current
Security Deposits 193.15 194.29
Fixed Deposits With Banks having maturity more than 12 months 41.94 139.90
235.09 334.19
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Note 7 : Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars As at March| As at March 31,
31, 2025 2024
Deferred Tax Liability 21.71 (6.28)
Total 21.71 -6.28
7.1 Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
For the year ended on March 31, 2025 (Rs. In lakhs
Chargel/(credit) | Charge/(credit) As at
Particulars As at March |in the Sta.ltement in Other March 31
31,2024 of Profitand | Comprehensive ’
2025
Loss Income
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (6.13) 22.83 - 16.70
Items Disallowed u/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 - (6.58) - (6.58)
Fair Valuation of Security Deposits taken - (2.73) - (2.73)
Fair Valuation of Security Deposits Given - 5.68 - 5.68
Depreciation on Right to use assets - 297 - 2.97
Adjustments due to Lease Liabilites - 5.53 - 5.53
Provision for Expected Credit Loss - 1.73 - 1.73
MAT Credit Entitlement (0.15) (1.45) - (1.60)
(6.28) 27.99 - 21.71
For the year ended on March 31, 2024 (Rs. In lakhs
Charge/(credit) | Charge/(credit) As at
. As at April 1,|in the Statement in Other
Particulars . . March 31,
2023 of Profit and | Comprehensive
2024
Loss Income
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose 2.75 3.38 - 6.13
MAT Credit Entitlement 4.70 (4.56) - 0.15
7.45 (1.18) - 6.28

90| Page




° HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

v Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 8 : Other Non-current / Current assets (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
[Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated]
Non-current
Prepaid Cylinder charges 17.49 -
Unamortised Employee benefit exps 2.40 -
19.89 -
Current
Advance to suppliers 23.33 17.96
Balance with Government authorities 21.73 -
Prepaid Expenses 8.02 -
Prepaid Cylinder charges 4.37 -
57.46 17.96

Fixed deposit of 5.20 lakhs is lien marked against overdraft facility of 4.40 lakhs, hence its is considered as

non-current asset.
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HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 9 : Inventories (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,] As at March
2025 31, 2024
(As verified, valued and certified by management)
(@) Raw Materials - -
Finished Goods 59.39 40.99
Less: Non-moving Inventory transferred to Non-Current
Financial Assets - -
(b)  Net Finished Goods 59.39 40.99
Total 59.39 40.99

9.1 Method of Valuation of inventory for all above categories of inventory is

Note 10 : Trade Receivable

lower of cost or net realizable value

i As at March 31,] As at March
Particulars 2025 31, 2024
Unsecured, Considered good 123.00 152.31
Considered doubtful - Credit Impaired -6.66 -
Less : Allowance for doubtful receivables -6.66 -
TOTAL 109.68 152.31

Note: The Company has used a practical expedient for computing expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, taking into account historical credit loss experience and accordingly, provisions are made for

expected credit loss for amounts due from customers wherever necessary.

10.1 Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- outstanding as on March 31, 2025

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction

<6 Months

6 Months-1
year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
years

TOTAL

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

90.44

6.13

16.93

5.16

4.34

123.00

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

-6.66

-6.66

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

83.78

4.34

116.34

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

6.66

Net Trade Receivables-Non Current

109.68

10.2 Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- outstanding as on March 31, 2024

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction

<6 Months

6 Months-1
year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
years

TOTAL

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

13.82

110.35

28.14

152.31

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

152.31

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Net Trade Receivables-Non Current

152.31

10.3 Summary of movement in allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March
31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year
Allowances provided during the year
Allowances reversed during the year
Less : Write off of bad debts

Balance at the end of the year

6.66

6.66

Trade receivables are valued considering provision for allowance using expected credit loss method. In addition to the historical pattern of credit losses, the
Company has considered the likelihood of increased credit risks, subsequent recoveries, insurance and consequential default. This assessment is
considering the nature of industries, impact immediately seen in the demand outlook of these industries and the financial strength of the customers in

respect of whom amounts are receivable.

Allowance for doubtful debts in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended as on 31.03.2025 is Rs. 6.66 lakhs.
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Note 11 : Cash and Bank balances

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2025 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 93.82 32,95
Balance with Bank 106.46 14.36
Less: Fixed depsotis having maturity of more than 12 months 41.94 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 158.35 47.31
The Details of Fixed Deposits pledged with banks
|Fixed Deposits pledged with banks as security against overdraft facility 5.20 | 5.20 |

Note 12 : Other Current Asset

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2025 2024
Current
Current tax assets (TDS & TCS) 16.32 -
Current tax liabilities -10.95 -
5.37 -
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Note 13 : Share Capital
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Authorised
1,20,00,000 (1,20,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each 1,200.00 1,200.00
Issued, Subscribed, & Fully Paid up :
1,90,30,800 (1,90,30,800 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 1,093.08 1,093.08
1,093.08 1,093.08
Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
13.1 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year :
(Rs. In lakhs)
. Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
As at beginning of the year 10,930,800 1,093.08 4,000,300 400.03
Add: Issued During the Year - - 6,930,500 693.05
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,930,800 1,093.08 10,930,800 1,093
13.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% of total equity shares
Sr. No. Name of Shareholder Year ended March 31, 2025. Year ended March 31, 202.4
Nos. % of Holding Nos. % of Holding
1| NIKET M. SHAH 615,500 5.63 615,500 5.63
2| HITAL M. SHAH 670,000 6.13 670,000 6.13
3| VIRALI VICKY JHAVERI 800,000 7.32 800,000 7.32
4| RAVEESH DEWAN 600,000 5.49 600,000 5.49
5[ PARMINDER SINGH SETHI 600,000 5.49 600,000 5.49
6| RAJESH NANUBHAI JHAVERI HUF 700,000 6.40 700,000 6.40
6| VICKY R. JHAVERI HUF 700,000 6.40 700,000 6.40
As per records of the company, including its register of shareholder, the above shareholding represents both legal
and beneficial ownership of shares.
13.3 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:
Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as on March 31, 2025
Name No. of Shares % Held % Change
Name of promoters
NIKET M. SHAH 615,500 5.63 0.00%
HITAL M. SHAH 670,000 6.13 0.00%
Total 1,285,500 11.76
Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as on March 31, 2024
Name No. of Shares % Held % Change
Name of promoters
NIKET M. SHAH 615,500 5.63 9.76%
HITAL M. SHAH 670,000 6.13 10.62%
Total 1,285,500 11.76
The Company has issued 69,30,500 Equity Shares of face value of 10 each at premium of Rs. 2 per share by way of
Preferential Allotment on 28th August 2023.
Note 14 : Other Equity (Rs in lakhs)
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company Total |
Particulars Reserve and Surplus i i
Capital Reserve Other Reserves Secu.rlty Reta'lned
premium Earnings
Balance as at April 1, 2023 9.66 128.55 116.99 -17.07 238.14
Profit for the year 50.64
Balance as at March 31, 2024 9.66 128.55 116.99 33.56 288.77
Balance as at April 1, 2024 9.66 128.55 116.99 33.56 288.77
Profit for the year -15.70 -15.70
Balance as at March 31, 2025 9.66 128.55 116.99 17.86 273.08
14.1 Nature and purpose of reserves

General reserve

General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation

Security premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares, in relation to issuance of equity, is recognised in

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve,

Capital Reserve

This represents amount of Subsidy received on acquisition of plant & machinery.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 15 : Borrowings

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Non-current
Secured
Term Loans from
i) From Banks 28.41 30.59
i) From NBFC - 9.74
28.41 40.33
Current
Secured
Working Capital Loans - 25.92
Term Loan
i) From Banks 11.82 9.68
i) From NBFC - 3.74
11.82 39.34
40.24 79.67
Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or finanacial institutions.
Notes:
15.1 Loans referred above are to the extent of:
(a) Loans from various Banks, NBFC and Financial institution are as in shown in annexure.
3/31/2025 3/31/2024
Sr. No. Particulars (including Current | (including Current
Maturity) Maturity)
| Loan from NBFCs
1 Bajaj Finserv Limited 9.74 12.81
Rupee term loan of Rs.17 lakhs carries interest @ 18.25% p.a. The Loan is
mortarium period of 24 months from 02/07/2020 and the Loan is repayable in
60 equally monthly instalment starting from 02th Jul'2022 of Rs.0.43 lakhs
each. The above loan is Unsecured loan.
] Loans from Banks
1 HDFC Bank Limited 4.99 -
Rupee term loan of Rs.6.13 Lakhs carries interest @ 14.70% p.a. The Loan is
repayable in 36 equally monthly instalment starting from 05th August 2024 of
Rs. 0.21 lakhs each. The above loan is Secured against Vehicle.
2 ICICI BANK 30.59 40.27
Rupee term loan of Rs. 45.00 lakhs carries interest @ 15.50% p.a. The Loan is
repayable in 48 equally monthly instalment starting from 05th Sep'23 of Rs.
1.27 lakhs each. The above loan is Unsecured loan.
3 The Mehsana Urban Co.Op. Bank Working Capital Limited - 25.92
The company has availed Working Capital Limit of Rs. 60 Lakhs are secured
against Stock and Book debts.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits (including CC/LC/BG) of Rs. Sixty Lakhs (Rs.
60,00,000/-), in aggregate, from The Mehsana Urban Co. Op. Bank Ltd. of Rs.
60 Lakhs (Rs.. 60,00,000/-) on the basis of security of current assets.
The Working Capital Limits has been fully repaid as on 31st May, 2024.
4 The Mehsana Urban Co.Op. Bank Overdraft Facility -5.08
The company has availed Overdraft facilities of Rs. 4.40 Lakhs are secured
against Fixed Deposit
5 Mahindra & Mahindra Financal Services - 0.67
Rupee term loan of Rs.7.11 lakhs carries interest @ 9.80% p.a. The Loan is
repayable in 36 equally monthly instalment starting from 10th Jul'21 of Rs.0.23
lakhs each. The above loan is secured against hypothecation of MAHINDRA
BOLERO MAXI TRUCK PLUS 1.2T
(b) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies :
Reason if Charge
Sr. No. Particular is registered Statutory period | Actual date of

beyond statutory
period

of registration

registration

-

Motor Vehicle (Hypothecation)

Charge is created
with RTO and on

RC book also

30 days

6/26/2024

9| Page




)

Note 16 : Lease Liability

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Non- Current
-Lease Liability 105.76 -
105.76 -
Il Current
-Lease Liability 22.69 -
22.69 -
Note 17 : Other financial liabilities
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,] As at March 31,
2025 2024
Non-Current
Security Deposits from Vendor 28.46 37.94
28.46 37.94
Note 18 : Provisions
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Non-Current
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note No. 31) 21.49 -
21.49 -
Current
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note No. 31) 3.81 -
Other provisions 2.54 5.32
6.35 5.32
27.84 5.32
Note 19 : Other Liabilities
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,] As at March 31,
2025 2024
Non-Current
Unearned Cylinder Charges 8.40
8.40 -
Current
Advance from customers 28.12 -
Unearned Cylinder Charges 2.10 -
Provision for Exps 2.69 -
32.91 -
41.31 -

9| Page




)

Note 20 : Trade Payable

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Current
Due to micro, small and medium enterprise - -
Due to others 96.09 79.38
96.09 79.38
20.1 Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables as on 31.03.2025 (Rs. In lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due Total
date of payment
Particulars 1-2 2.3
Less than 6 Less than More than
Months 1 year years)years 3 years
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(ii) Others - 93.33 [ 1.39 1.37 [ 96.09
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - - -
20.2 Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables as on 31.03.2024 (Rs. In lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due
Less than 6 Less than 1-2 23 More than | Total
. months 1 year years)years 3 years
Particulars
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(i) Others 52.20 2717 - - -| 79.38
(iii) Disputed
dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed
dues — Others - - - - - -
Note 21 : Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Taxation) - -0.31
- -0.31
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Note 22 : Revenue from Operations

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Sales
Sale of products
Sale of goods 635.11 584.47
Sale of sevices
Software Integration Charges 80.66 88.26
Software License Sales 27.30 -
715.77 672.73
Other operating income
Other operating income 9.42 11.80
9.42 11.80
725.19 684.53
22.1 Sale of Goods mainly includes Oxygen and Other Gases.
22.2 Sale of Services mainly includes software.
Note 23 : Other Income
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
a. Interest Income
Deposits with banks 65.07 5.05
Others 0.06 42.02
b. Dividend Income
Shares - 0.35
c. Other Non Operating Income 6.07 0.83
71.20 48.24
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a HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

v Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 24 : Purchase of Stock-in-trade

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Purchases of stock-in-trade 561.00 448.08
561.00 448.08
Note 25 : Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Closing Finished Goods- Traded items 59.39 40.99
Opening Finished Goods- Traded items 40.99 32.83
-18.40 -8.16
Note 26 : Employee Benefit Expense
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Salaries, wages, bonus & gratuity 45.67 36.98
Director Sitting Fees 6.82 -
Director Remuneration 32.00 30.00
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 26.19 -
Staff welfare - 0.35
110.67 67.33
Note 27 : Finance Cost
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Interest expense 10.68 11.13
Other Borrowing Costs - 0.72
10.68 11.85
Note 28 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets 16.03 13.59
16.03 13.59
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° HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

v Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 29 : Other Expenses

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Advertisement Exps 1.33 1.10
Insurance Exps 3.92 3.99
Interest & Penalty 0.21 3.64
Legal & Professional Fees 29.69 9.02
Miscelleneous Exps 5.38 10.53
Office & Stationery Exps 10.72 5.24
Rent Exps 2.67 2.71
Repairs & Maintanance Exp. 9.49 3.95
Software expenses 0.71 58.37
Sales & Promotional Exps 5.19 -
Transport Exps 33.44 23.84
Travelling Exps 2.52 7.56
Foriegn Exchange Gain/Loss 0.12 0.49
Loss on Sale of Assets 0.27 -
Payment to Auditors 1.95 1.60
Provision for doubtful debts 6.66 -
Electric Exp. Alc 5.70 5.72
119.97 137.77
* Details of Payment to Auditors
-Audit Fees 1.80 1.45
-Taxation Matters 0.15 0.15

-Other Services
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Note 30: Tax Expenses

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current income tax 11.45 15.05
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - -
Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense 27.99 (3.38)
39.45 11.67
Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax on
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses - -
Equity instruments carried at FVTOCI - -
Income tax expense as per the statement of profit and loss 39.45 11.67
30.1 Reconciliation of effective tax
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Profit before tax from continuing and discontinued operations Tax @ 26% 23.75 62.30
Tax @ 26% 6.18 16.20
Adjustments for:
Permenant differences not allowable as per Income Tax Act, 1961
Changes in deferred tax due to change in Future Tax Rate of the company
Carried Forward credit forgone
Impact of current tax of earlier years 33.27 (4.53)
Other Adjustments
39.45 11.67
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v Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 31: As per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosures of employee benefits as defined in the Indian Accounting Standards are

given below.
31.1 Defined contribution plans:

The Company deposits amount of contribution to government under PF and other schemes operated by government.

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Provident and other funds - 0.89
- 0.89

31.2 Defined benefit plans:

The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans:

(a) Gratuity

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit as per scheme of the Company, for each
completed year of service. The benefit vests only after five years of continuous service, except in case of death/disability of employee
during service. The vested benefit is payable on separation from the Company, on retirement, death or termination.

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

Gratuity - Defined benefit obligation
Opening Balance
Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss
Service cost
Net interest expense
Sub-total included in statement of profit and loss

25.30

Benefit paid

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
expense)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Sub-total included in OCI

Benefits paid

Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

25.30

25.30

Total benefit liability

25.30

The net liability disclosed above relates to following funded and unfunded plans:

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value Of Plan Assets

25.30

Net Liability(Asset)

25.30
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HILLTONE SOFTWARE & GASES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

For the Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025
Discount rate 6.6% p.a.
Future salary increase 7.00% p.a.

Attrition rate -

Age 25 & Below : 10 % p.a.
25t035:8 % p.a.
35t045:6 % p.a.
45t055:4 % p.a.

55 & above : 2 % p.a.

Witdrawal Rates

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit
obligation
. Change in assumptions For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025
Gratuity
Discount rate 0.5% increase -2.99%
0.5% decrease 3.16%
Salary increase 0.5% increase 3.09%
0.5% decrease -2.97%
Withdrawal Rates W.R. x110% -0.02%
W.R. x90% 0.02%

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined
benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change as compared to the prior year.
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Note 32 : Related Party Disclosure

i)List of Related parties and their Relations at the end of the year:

Enterprises having Significant Influence (EHSI) :-

Dhanlaxmi Distributors Director is Partner
Key Management Personnel:-

Niket M Shah Director

Hital M Shah Director

Prafull Makvana Chief Financial Officer
Other Related Parties to KMP:

Ranjan P. Makwana Wife of CFO
Sapna H. Shah Wife of Director
Parul N Shah (Resigned as Woman director 03-01-2025) Wife of Director

Related party disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, ” Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:

(ii)Related Party Transactions (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
A. Loan Repayment 12.88 23.41
Niket M Shah 11.63 21.19
Hital M Shah 1.25 2.22
B. Loan Taken 12.88 22.09
Niket M Shah 11.63 19.87
Hital M Shah 1.25 2.22
B. Loan Given (net)
Prafull Makvana (AS Employee advance) 1.61 0.00
C. Director's Remuneration 32.00 30.00
Niket M Shah 16.00 15.00
Hital M Shah 16.00 15.00
D. Key manager Salary
Prafull Makvana 7.01 6.68
E. Sales
Dhanlaxmi Distributors 0.38 6.53
(iii)Related Party Balances

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
A. Trade Receivables 2.32 244
Dhanlaxmi Distributors 2.32 2.44
B. Trade Deposiit 0.75 0.75
Dhanlaxmi Distributors 0.75 0.75
C.Loan Given to Employee 6.78 5.17
Prafull Makvana 6.78 5.17
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Note 33 : Financial ratios

Particulars 2024-25]2023-24| % Change Reasons for Material Change
Current ratio 2.30 2.08 10.48% -
Total debt equity ratio 1.28 1.15 11.73% -
Debt service coverage ratio 2.23 3.70 -39.67% Due to Decrease in Profit compared to previous year
Return on Equity (%) -1.14%| 5.32%| -121.48% Due to Decrease in Profit compared to previous year
Inventory turnover ratio 10.81 11.92 -9.30% -
Debtors turnover ratio (in days) 5.74 4.36 31.87% Due to Increase in Turnover compared to previous year
Trade payables turnover ratio (in days) 6.39 5.90 8.31% -
Net capital turnover ratio (in days) 4.24 5.69 -25.40%] Due to Increase in Working Capital compared to previous year
Net profit ratio (%) -2.09%| 7.40%| -128.21% Due to Decrease in Profit compared to previous year
Return on Capital Employed (%) -0.99%| 3.56%| -127.91% Due to Decrease in Profit compared to previous year

Basis for ratios:

|Current ratio

(Total current assets/Current liabilities)

[Net Debt equity ratio

(Total debt/ equity)
[Total debt: Non-current borrowings + Current Borrowings - Deposits/Margin Money against Long Term Borrowings
[Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity]

|Debt service coverage ratio

(EBIT/(Net finance charges + Scheduled principal repayments of non current borrowings and lease obligations (excluding prepayments) during the
period))

[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net finance charges]

[Net finance charges: Finance costs ]

|Return on Equity (%)

Profit after tax (PAT)/Average Equity)
[Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity]

[Inventory turnover ratio

(Cost of Goods sold/Average Inventory )

|Debtors turnover ratio (in days)

(Average trade receivables/Turnover in days)
[Turnover: Revenue from operations]

|Trade payables turnover ratio (in days)

(Average Trade Payables/Expenses in days)

[Expenses: Total Expenses - Finance Cost - Depreciation and Amortisation Expense — Employee Benefit Expenses in respect of Retirement
Benefits — Other expenses with respect to Royalty, Rates & Taxes, Prior Period Exps, Bad-Debts, Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances,
Provision for Impairment and Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss, Sitting Fees of Directors and Interest on Statutory Dues]

[Net capital turnover ratio (in days)

working capital/Turnover in days
[Working capital: Current assets - Current liabilities]
[Turnover: Revenue from operations]

| Net profit ratio (%)

(Net profit after tax/Turnover)
[Turnover: Revenue from operations]

|Return on Capital Employed (%)

(EBIT/Average capital employed)
[Capital Employed: Equity share capital + Other equity + Non current borrowings + Current borrowings]

[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net finance charges

|Return on investment (%)

((Net gain/(loss) on sale+fair value changes of mutual funds)/Average
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Note 34 : Segment Reporting

S No. Particulars

Year Ended

Year Ended

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

1|Segment Revenue (Income)

Sales Of Gases (net of adjustments) 644.53 644.50
Sales Of Software 107.96 88.26
Gross Revenue from Operations 752.49 732.76
Net Revenue from Operations 752.49 732.76
2|Segment Expenses
Gases 733.20 605.41
Software 66.74 68.42
Total Expenses 799.94 673.83
2[Segment Result
Gases (88.67) 39.09
Software 41.22 19.84
Total Segment Profit (47.45) 58.93
Unallocated Finance Cost -
Other Net Unallocable (Expenses)/ Income 71.19 3.38
Income taxes (39.45) (11.67)
Profit After Tax (15.70) 50.64
3|Segment Assets
Gases 1,750.27 1,416.86
Software 167.61
Unallocated -
Total 1,750.27 1,584.47
4|Segment Liabilites
Gases 384.11 181.76
Software 20.86
Unallocated 1,366.16 1,381.85
Total 1,750.27 1,584.47
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Note 35 : Financial instruments by category

Financial assets by category

(Rs. In lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31, 2024

Particulars FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised

cost cost
Investments in
-Others - - 2.30 -
Long-term loans - - - -
Trade receivables - 109.68 - 152.31
Loans - 413.58 - 584.15
Cash & cash equivalents (including other bank balances) - 158.35 i 47.31
Other financial assets - - - -
- Security & Tender deposits - 41.94 - 139.90
- Deposits - Maturity more than 12 months * - 193.15 - 194.29
- Interest Accrued - - - -
- Amount receivable from Statutory Authorities - - - -
- Others - - - -
Total Financial assets - 916.70 2.30 1,117.97
Financial liabilities by category

(Rs. In lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31, 2024

Particulars FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised

cost cost

Borrowings - 40.24 - 79.66
Lease Libaility - 128.45 - -
Trade payables - 96.09 - 79.38
Other financial liabilities - - - -
- Security Deposits - 28.46 - 37.94
Total Financial liabilities 293.23 196.98
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Note 36 : Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The loans and borrowings are primarily
taken to finance and support the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other
financial assets.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s
senior management ensures that financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The risk management system is relevant to business reality, pragmatic and simple and
involves the following:

Risk identification and definition: Focuses on identifying relevant risks, creating / updating clear definitions to ensureundisputed understanding along with details of

the underlying root causes / contributing factors.

Risk classification: Focuses on understanding the various impacts of risks and the level of influence on its root causes. This involves identifying various processes
generating the root causes and clear understanding of risk interrelationships.

Risk assessment and prioritisation: Focuses on determining risk priority and risk ownership for critical risks. This involves assessment of the various impacts taking
into consideration risk appetite and existing mitigation controls.

Risk mitigation: Focuses on addressing critical risks to restrict their impact(s) to an acceptable level (within the defined risk appetite). This involves a clear definition of
actions, responsibilities and milestones.

Risk reporting and monitoring: Focuses on providing to the Board periodic information on risk profile evolution and mitigation plans.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk or Net assset value ("NAV") risk in case of investment in mutual funds.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include investments, trade receivables, trade payables, loans and borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial

liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increasel(d:g;'::sse) in basis Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax

March 31, 2025

Rupee borrowings +50 -
-50 -

March 31, 2024

Rupee borrowings +50 (0.13)
-50 0.13

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly higher
volatility than in prior years.

Foreign currency risk
The Company has international operations and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from future

commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not its functional currency (Rs). The risk also includes highly

probable foreign currency cash flows
As an estimation of the approximate impact of the foreign exchange rate risk, with respect to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Company has calculated the

impact as follows:

(In lakhs)
Foreign Currency Amount Reporting Currency Amount
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 |March 31, 2024

Accounts Receivable
usb - - - -

Accounts Payable
USD - 0.20 - 16.72
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the

Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other
currencies is not material.

Particulars Change in USD | Effect on profit
rate before tax
March 31, 2025 5% -
5% -
March 31, 2024 5% (0.84)
-5% 0.84

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company is
exposed to credit risk primarily from trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and other financial assets.

The Company has a credit risk management policy in place to monitor and manage credit risk. The creditworthiness of customers is evaluated based on financial position,
past experience, and other relevant factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the management. These
limits are regularly monitored.

Trade receivables are subject to credit limits, ongoing credit evaluation, and account monitoring procedures. The Company applies the simplified approach for recognition
of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables as permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables.

With respect to financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, and other financial assets, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises
from the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Company deals only with reputable banks and
financial institutions having high credit ratings to reduce the risk of counterparty default.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of trade receivables, with exposure spread across a number of customers. The Company does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
The principal sources of liquidity of the Company are cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow that is generated from operations. It believes that current
cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash flow that is generated from operations is sufficient to meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk is

perceived to be low
The following table shows the maturity analysis of financial liabilities of the Company based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Standalone

Balance Sheet date

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars On demand | Less than 1 Year | More than 1 Year Total
As at year ended
March 31, 2025
Borrowings (including current maturities of B 11.82 28.41 40.24
long-term borrowings)
Lease Liabilities 22.69 105.76 128.45
Trade & other payables - 96.09 - 96.09
Other financial liabilities - 28.46 - 28.46
March 31, 2024
Borrowings (inclu_ding current maturities of 25.92 30.33 20.33 105.58
long-term borrowings)
Lease Liabilities - - -
Trade & other payables - 79.38 - 79.38
Other financial liabilities - 37.94 - 37.94
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Note 37 : Capital Management

The primary objective of capital management is to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the
growth of the Company. It determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term
and other strategic investment plans.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Company includes, within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars As at March 31,] As at March 31,
2025 2024

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 12 & 14) 40.24 79.67
Less: cash and cash equivalent (Note 8) 158.35 47.31
Net debt -118.11 32.36
Equity share capital (Note 10) 1,093.08 1,093.08
Other equity (Note 11) 273.08 288.77
Total capital 1,366.16 1,381.85
Capital and net debt 1,248.05 1,414.21
Gearing ratio (%) -9.46% 2.29%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans
and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
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Note 38 : Fair value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 -- This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded on the Stock Exchanges
is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

b) Level 2 -- The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.

c) Level 3 -- If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved, wherever required, for valuation of significant assets, such as properties, unquoted financial assets and significant liabilities.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by the Company after discussion with and approval by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company, after discussions with its external valuers,
determines which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per
the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value measurement. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

1  Carrying value and fair value
Given below is the comparison by class of the carrying value and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments.

(Rs. In lakhs)
Carrying value Fair value (See Note)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Financial Assets (1)
Trade receivables 109.68 152.31 109.68 152.31
Loans 413.58 584.15 413.58 584.15
Cash & cash equivalents (including other bank
balances) 158.35 47.31 158.35 47.31
Security & Tender deposits 41.94 139.90 41.94 139.90
Deposits - Maturity more than 12 months 193.15 194.29 193.15 194.29
Total Financial Assets 916.70 1,117.97 916.70 1,117.97
Financial Liabilities (2)
Borrowings 40.24 79.66 40.24 79.66
Lease Liabilities 128.45 - 128.45 -
Trade payables 96.09 79.38 96.09 79.38
Payables on purchase of fixed assets 28.46 37.94 28.46 37.94
Total Financial Liabilities 293.23 196.98 293.23 196.98

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, working capital loan and other financial
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2025 (Valuation date - March 31, 2025) is Nil
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024 (Valuation date - March 31, 2024)

(Rs. In lakhs)
Fair value measurement using
. . Significant Significant
Particulars Quo_ted prices in obgservable uno%servable
active markets . X Total
(Level 1) inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
FVTPL investments
Equity shares-Unquoted - 2.30 2.30

FVTOCI investments
Equity shares-Unquoted -

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.

Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following tables show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are
recorded at fair value. Transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 occur when the market for some securities became more liquid, which
eliminates the need for the previously required significant unobservable valuation inputs. Since the transfer, these instruments have
been valued using valuation models incorporating observable market inputs. Transfers into Level 3 reflect changes in market
conditions as a result of which instruments become less liquid. Therefore, the Company requires significant unobservable inputs to

calculate their fair value.

The following tables show the reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value:

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars As at March 31, |As at March 31,
2025 2024
Opening Balance 2.30 2.30
Purchases 0.00 0.00
Sales 2.30 0.00
Issuances 0.00 0.00
Settlements 0.00 0.00
Transfer into Level 3 0.00 0.00
Transfer from Level 3 0.00 0.00
Net interest income, net trading income and other income 0.00 0.00
Income / (loss) receognised in other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 0.00 2.30
Unrealised gains and losses related to balances held at the end of the year 0.00 0.00
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Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Basic & Diluted EPS
Computation of Profit (Numerator)
(i) Profit/(loss) from continuing operations (15.70) 50.64
(ii) Profit from discontinued operations - -
(iii) Profit/(loss) from continuing & discontinued operations (15.70) 50.64
Weighted Average Number of Shares (Denominator) Nos. Nos.
\t/)Vel.ghted average number of Equity shares of Rs.10 each used for calculation of 10,930,800 8,063,662
asic and diluted earnings per share
Basic & Diluted EPS (in Rupees)
(i) Continuing operations (0.14) 0.63
(ii) Discontinued operations
(iii) Continuing and Discontinued operations (0.14) 0.63

Note 40 Utilization of Borrowed funds and Share Premium

(a) During the year, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) During the year, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 41 Expenditure in foreign Currency

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

Software Integration/Purchase

2417

58.11

Note 42 Earning in foreign Currency

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

Software Integration/Sales

18.16

Note 43 Figures of previous year have been recasted/restated where necessary.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

In terms of our report of even date attached

FOR, K.C Parikh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 107550W

Kishor C. Parikh
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Place: Santej

Date: 29/05/2025
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